










Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 1 of 17

City Council Minutes
Regular Meeting - DRAFT

13 May 2013

PRESENT

Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M.
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Vernon
L. Brown, and George M. Daye.

ABSENT

None.

STAFF PRESENT

City Manager Ray Griffin, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank
Frazier, Finance Director Katherine C. Brafford, Engineering Director, Peter Sokalski,
Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom Spain and Police Chief Keith Sidwell.

CALL TO ORDER

The 13 May 2013 Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by Mayor
James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal
Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC.

ROLL CALL

The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Council Member Brenda Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in a prayer and the Pledge of
Allegiance.

Mayor O’Geary greeted Council and citizens alike to this meeting.



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 2 of 17

ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda. City Manager Griffin
advised there would be an addition to the Closed Session in accordance with G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(3), Consult with the City Attorney. Council Member Coffey asked that a discussion be
added regarding the Recreation Center and School Employees. With those additions, Mayor
O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved to accept the
Agenda with the two additions mentioned above. Motion seconded by Council Member Daye
and unanimously approved.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes. Council Member
Rainey moved the approval of the 22 April 2013 Short Regular and 22 April 2013 Work Session
minutes as presented. Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey and unanimously approved.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS

The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to
Council on agenda matters.

NEW BUSINESS

Authorizing the Submission of the FY14 BJA Bulletproof Vest Grant Application and
NCLM Risk Management Service Reimbursement Funding for the Police Department.
(Reference: CAF 13-50; Resolution 13-37)

City Manager Griffin asked Police Chief Sidwell to come forward and brief Council. Chief
Sidwell said this request addresses two of the City’s KSO’s. He went on to say the total cost for
the purchase of 10 bulletproof vests and vest carriers would be $10,575. If awarded, the BJA
Bulletproof Vest Grant would provide up to $5,287.50 and would cover vests purchased after 1
April 2013. Chief Sidwell is also requesting approval to submit a funding reimbursement
request to the NC League of Municipalities Risk Management Services.

(Clerk’s Note: Council Member Daeke arrived at 6:17 p.m.)

Council Member Rainey asked if this is a recurring cost. Chief Sidwell said it is recommended
vests be replaced every five (5) years on a rotating basis.

There were no further questions. Mayor O’Geary then asked for the pleasure of Council.

Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of Resolution 13-37, Authorizing the Submission of
the FY13 BJA Bulletproof Vest Grant Application and NCLM Risk Management Service
Reimbursement Funding for the Police Department. Motion seconded by Council Member
Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-
Jenkins, Brown and Daye. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Daeke. (See Resolution
Book 3, pp. 175)



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 3 of 17

Authorizing An Additional Assessment of $21,362 for FY12-13 to Kerr-Tar Regional
Council of Governments for Payment of Funds Owed to the Revolving Loan Funds.
(Reference: CAF 13-52; Ordinance 13-25)

(Clerk’s Note: Council Member Inscoe asked to be excused from voting as he serves as a
consultant for Kerr-Tar Regional Council of Governments)

City Manager Griffin said Mr. Danny Wright, Chairman of the Board of Directors for the Kerr-
Tar Regional Council of Governments (COG), was present and with the Mayor’s approval asked
him to come forward to explain this request. Mr. Wright gave a brief history of the COG and
explained the COG is funded by grants and the membership fees paid by Franklin, Granville,
Person, Vance and Warren Counties, along with 16 municipalities, fund the matches required by
various approved grants. He then read a portion of the audit report which identified poor
accounting practices which he assured Council have now been corrected. He explained the
$311,367 were improperly used and stated no criminal activity took place with those dollars.
The COG is now requesting $21,362 from the City as its portion of the $311,367 that needs to be
paid immediately and said the COG has full intentions of repaying the City, along with all the
other municipalities/counties involved as soon as possible. Mr. Wright added that the EDA has
demanded a separate account be established for the repayment of the $311,367. He also said the
position of CBDG Director has been eliminated and the hiring of a COG Director has been
postponed as part of the COG’s effort to repay this loan. Mr. Wright’s full presentation is
incorporated by reference and hereby made part of these minutes. (See Appendix A)

Council Member Rainey asked if this shortfall occurred this year or over years and about future
expenditures. Mr. Wright responded the shortfall manifested itself in 2012 as an accumulation
over the years. He also said this is a problem with the Revolving Loan Funds only.

City Attorney John Zollicoffer, Jr., asked if the assessments are based on per capita. Mr. Wright
responded yes.

Council Member Kearney expressed his appreciation for the presentation and asked for
verification that the full balance is being required from the EDA. Mr. Wright responded yes. He
added that once the outstanding funds are repaid he was hopeful the COG would be able to
negotiate a new loan.

Council Member Coffey asked for a list of the businesses that received funds. Mr. Wright said
he would provide a list.

City Manager Griffin suggested taking $50,000 reserved for the REEF project to pay the $21,362
for this project and another project to be discussed later this evening. He shared privilege license
fees are down approximately $89,000 and due to an oversight, the Hospital has just been billed
for real property taxes by the Tax Collector

Council Member Coffey asked for verification that the $50,000 was the same amount discussed
at a prior meeting when it was decided to leave the money until the end of the fiscal year.



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 4 of 17

Discussion ensued and it was decided that taking the $50,000 from the REEF Project would not
show the support expressed by Council previously.

Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council.

Council Member Kearney moved the approval of Ordinance 13-25, Authorizing An Additional
Assessment of $21,362 for FY12-13 to Kerr-Tar Regional Council of Governments for Payment
of Funds Owed to the Revolving Loan Funds with $50,000 taken from the General Fund
Undesignated Balance rather than the REEF project. Motion seconded by Council Member
Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Kearney, Coffey, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins,
Daeke, Brown and Daye. NO: None. ABSTAIN: Inscoe. ABSENT: None. (See Ordinance
Book 8, pp. 569)

Authorizing the Dedication and Acceptance of Vance Granville Community College
Watermain Extension. (Reference: CAF 13-51; Resolution 13-38)

City Manager Griffin asked Engineering Director Peter Sokalski to brief Council on this item.
Mr. Sokalski said Vance Granville Community College (VGCC) has extended approximately
540 linear feet of 6” DIP watermain to serve a newly acquired building by the College which is
located across the street from the main campus. The watermains have been constructed and
inspected in accordance to the City’s standards. All testing for the water main has been
performed and approval from DENR has been obtained for the use of the water system. The
College has asked the City to accept the main and a one year warranty will be placed on the
system as a condition of acceptance by the City.

There was no discussion. Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council.

Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 13-38, Authorizing the Dedication
and Acceptance of Vance Granville Community College Watermain Extension. Motion seconded
by Council Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Coffey, Inscoe,
Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye and Kearney. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None. (See Resolution Book 3, pp. 177)

Approval of Sole Source for New Radio Read Water Meter Purchases and to Purchase the
Meters from HD Supply Waterworks, LTD; and Authorizing the Mayor to Sign the
Promissory Note for the Loan For Project #H-LRX-F-11-1693 for the Purchase of Radio
Read Water Meters and Amending the Budget for Above Mentioned Project. (Reference:
CAF 13-48; Resolution 13-34, Ordinance 13-24)

City Manager Griffin asked Engineering Director Peter Sokalski to again come forward and
summarize this request. Mr. Sokalski said after about a year and a half, this project has received
a loan through the State for $294,000 to purchase 1,276 ¾” residential water meters; 20 1” water
meters; 5 2” water meters and 2 4” water meters, along with 1,296 MBX1 lids with 2” holes.
He said the loan is being offered at 0% interest with repayment at $14,696.40 per year. He also
said that H.D. Supply has exclusive rights to distribute these meters in North Carolina. Mr.
Sokalski explained that changing to another system would be costly and said staff recommends
continuing with the system currently in place.



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 5 of 17

Council Member Inscoe asked if the new meters would be clustered in particular areas to
improve productivity for the meter readers and if any meters would be shelved. Assistant City
Manager Frazier said they do not anticipate shelving any of the units. He said they would be
used to replace meters and that would limit clustering. Mr. Frazier added that the meters need to
be installed within a year after the grant is approved. Mr. Inscoe also asked if there had been any
increase in the previous quote. Mr. Sokalski said the cost per unit had decreased by $5.00

Council Member Rainey asked how many of the new radio read meters are currently in service.
Mr. Frazier said approximately 1,300 - both business and residential. Mr. Rainey also asked if
customers can request new meters. Mr. Frazier responded normally they are used to replace
meters as they break.

With no further questions, Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure.

Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 13-34, Approval of Sole Source for
New Radio Read Water Meter Purchases and to Purchase the Meters from HD Supply
Waterworks, LTD; and Authorizing the Mayor to Sign the Promissory Note for the Loan For
Project #H-LRX-F-11-1693 for the Purchase of Radio Read Water Meters and Ordinance 13-24,
Amending the Budget for Above Mentioned Project. Motion seconded by Council Member
Kearney and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke,
Brown, Daye, Kearney and Coffey. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None. (See
Resolution Book 3, pp. 169; Ordinance Book 8, pp. 567)

Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with McGill Associates, P.A. for the Completion of
an Engineering Report for the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project; and Establishing a CIP
Project Budget for the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project. (Reference: CAF 13-49:
Resolution 13-35, Ordinance 13-23)

City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frazier to present this item to Council. Mr.
Frazier briefly summarized the background for the project and said the project ranked high
enough with the State to receive a low interest CWSRF (Clean Water SRF) loan in the amount of
$1,800,000 at 2% interest. He explained the need of meeting all required deadlines and said the
first deadline, which is for an Engineering Report, is 1 July 2013. McGill Associates is
recommended to perform this Engineering Report as they have assisted the City in applying for
loans and grants, both past and present, and are currently working on other CIP projects. Mr.
Frazier explained the project is called the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall because the force main
that empties into Sandy Creek runs through the Cemetery.

Council Member Inscoe inquired about how this affects the City’s debt. City Manager Griffin
responded this project would not create an increase due to debt payoffs and the project being
built into the 20 year rate stabilization plan. Mr. Inscoe then asked about the Henderson Water
Reclamation Facility and Mr. Griffin said this would be discussed during the budget discussions
beginning Monday evening.

Mayor O’Geary then asked for the Council’s pleasure.



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 6 of 17

Council Member Kearney moved the approval of Resolution 13-35, Authorizing the Execution of
a Contract with McGill Associates, P.A. for the Completion of an Engineering Report for the
Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project; and Ordinance 13-23, Establishing a CIP Project Budget
for the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project. Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke and
APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye,
Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None (See Resolution
Book 3, pp. 171; Ordinance Book 8, pp. 565)

Authorizing Vance County to Extend 2,500 Linear Feet of Waterlines into Warren County.
(Reference: CAF 13-58; Resolution 13-40)

City Manager Griffin said he received a request from Vance County to extend water lines into
Warren County and asked City Attorney John Zollicoffer, Jr. to explain the contract. Attorney
Zollicoffer, Jr. said the contract is between Vance County and Warren County and by a prior
agreement between Vance County and the City, Vance County is now requesting permission
from the City to extend their waterlines. If approved, the water line would extend 2,500 linear
feet on Tower Road.

Council Member Kearney asked who owned the line. Attorney Zollicoffer said Vance County.

There was no further discussion and then Mayor O’Geary asked for the Council’s pleasure.

Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of Resolution 13-40, Authorizing Vance County to
Extend 2,500 Linear Feet of Waterlines into Warren County. Motion seconded by Council
Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown,
Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe and Rainey. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None.
(See Resolution Book 3, pp. 181)

Authorizing an Agreement Between the Embassy Cultural Center Foundation and the City
of Henderson. (Reference: CAF 13-57; Resolution 13-39)

City Manager Griffin said Mr. John Wester, Mr. Sam Watkins and Mr. George Watkins,
representing the Foundation Board, were present to answer questions. He then asked City
Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr., who had briefed Council Members previously, to discuss the key
elements of the agreement

Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. said years ago the City purchased land where the current library is
located and the Foundation was formed to raise funds from the general public to build the
library. Because the City is not allowed to borrow against pledged funds, an agreement was
signed to deed the Foundation that City block and the Foundation was to build the library and
then deed it back to the City. The property to the South of the library, which the Foundation
owns, is the location where the Foundation now wishes to build a new performing arts center
with funds they have raised for this purpose.

This agreement provides that the Foundation will payoff all deeds of trust and liens and
encumbrances against the library building and the parking lot on the North end of the property.
The Foundation would have no control over the library and the City would continue to have



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 7 of 17

rights to use McGregor Hall. Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. said there is a storage closet within the
library that opens into the lobby that will belong to the Foundation.

The Foundation has entered into an agreement with H. G. Reynolds to construct the performing
arts center on the property South of the library. The City will release any interest it may have in
that property and McGregor Hall as part of the agreement for conveyance of the library to the
City. The City will have no obligation to build, maintain or operate the performing arts center.
According to the agreement the performing arts center will be maintained and operated by the
Foundation and all profits would go to the Foundation. The City would release the Foundation
from any debts it presently might owe to the City.

Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. added the City will have the ability to join the Foundation in obtaining
grants but the City would have no liability regarding payment of any grants received.

Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. also said H.G. Reynolds has requested certain parking spaces be
cordoned off during construction and fencing be put in place to protect citizens and building
materials.

Council Member Kearney asked if the County/City relationship regarding the operation of the
Library would change. The answer was no; the relationship would remain the same.

Council Member Inscoe said the $10M in assets brought to the City books not only helps with
taxes but will also help with the City’s Bond rating.

At this time, Mayor O’Geary asked Mr. Wester, Chairman of the Foundation, to come forward.

Council Member Rainey asked when construction of the performing arts center building will
begin. Mr. Wester responded the end of this summer with an approximate 14 month timeframe
for completion.

Council Member Brown asked about seating capacity. Mr. Wester said there would be 957 –
1,000 seats and explained the layout allows for a portion of the seating to remain dark when
smaller groups use the facility.

Council Member Inscoe said he thought it admirable the citizens of this size city could raise the
monies to build this center. Mr. Wester agreed and emphasized the project is consistent with the
original design.

Council Member Rainey gave kudos/hats off to the Board of Directors of the Foundation for
their positive attitude in seeing this project to completion. He said thank you to all involved.

Council Member Peace-Jenkins said they have set an example of perseverance/tenacity.

Mayor O’Geary said this speaks well of the City of Henderson and the people. He then asked for
the pleasure of Council.



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 8 of 17

Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of Resolution 13-32, Authorizing an Agreement
Between the Embassy Cultural Center Foundation and the City of Henderson. Motion seconded
by Council Member Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Daeke, Brown,
Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey and Peace-Jenkins. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None. (See Resolution Book 3, pp. 179)

Amending Separate Contracts Between the City and Cordell’s Lawn Care, Inc. and Perks
Lawn Care, LLC to Include Additional Landscaping Services. (Reference: CAF 13-32;
Resolution 13-32)

City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier to summarize this request.
Mr. Frazier said during the 11 March 2013 meeting, Council asked staff to consider other areas
for privatization. These amended contracts include awarding Veterans Triangle and the Bennett
Perry House to Cordell’s Lawn Care and the downtown area and North Garnett Street to Park’s
Lawn Care.

Council Member Inscoe asked if there were bid specifications and if the contract included
pruning shrubs and trees. He also asked about the sprinkler system and if the agreement
included mulching, aerating, fertilizing, and if the contract included the trees in the City parking
area on Garnett Street. Mr. Frazier responded there was no designated guide; the sprinkler
system needed to be repaired by the City and then would be maintained by the landscaper;
mulching and aerating were included; however, fertilizing was not included and lastly the
parking lot was not considered.

Council Member Coffey asked if the agreement included replacement of shrubs. Mr. Frazier
responded no.

Council Member Kearney inquired about the net effect in terms of dollars to the City. Mr.
Frazier said it would allow staff to spend more time on street work. Council Member Rainey
summarized by saying staff would not be spread so thin.

Council Member Inscoe asked to have a revision to the contract to include the downtown parking
lot.

Council Member Coffey made a motion to approve Resolution 13-32 as presented. Mr. Inscoe
then asked her to withdraw her motion so the contract could be revised during the budget process
to include the downtown parking area. Council Member Coffey withdrew her motion. It was
the consensus of Council to discuss this during the budget process and to bring this item back to
Council at a future meeting.

Award of FY13 Audit Contract Between the City of Henderson and William L. Stark and
Company. (Reference: CAF 13-60; Resolution 13-41)

City Manager Griffin asked Finance Director Kathy Brafford to address Council. Ms. Brafford
reminded Council that William L. Stark and Company submitted a three year proposal to
perform the City’s audit in 2012. They completed the FY12 audit and the contract for FY13
would total $41,550, approximately a 5% increase over FY13.



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 9 of 17

There was no discussion. Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council.

Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 13-41, Award of FY13 Audit
Contract Between the City of Henderson and William L. Stark and Company. Motion seconded
by Council Member Kearney and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Daye, Kearney,
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke and Brown. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None. (See Resolution Book 3, pp. 183)

Recreation Center – School Employees

Council Member Coffey asked why school employees are not able to use the Recreation Facility.
She stated County and City employees use the facility free of charge and shared portions of
correspondence between the school superintendent, Mr. Gregory and the Aycock Recreation
Center Director, Alan Gill. She said Mr. Gregory felt free use of the facility would be an
additional tool for recruiting teachers.

City Manager Griffin said he had asked Mr. Gill to obtain the number of school employees so he
could consider the impact and as far as he knew, Mr. Gill had never received the information
requested. Mr. Griffin said he would prepare a report for the June meeting.

CONSENT AGENDA

The City Clerk read the Consent Agenda, summarized as follows:

Updating the Sewer Use Ordinance, Chapter 15. (Reference: CAF 13-23; Ordinance 13-14)
This amendment increases the City’s enforcement authority as well as makes the wording more
concise and comprehensible, and removes outdated sections. (See Ordinance Book 8, p 547)

Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside Watering of Lawns, Plants and Vegetation from June 1,
2013 through October 31, 2013. (Reference: CAF 13-37; Resolution 13-29) This allows credit
to customers for watering throughout the summer with a caveat that it may be discontinued if
water conservation measures and/or a drought situation arise. (See Resolution Book 3, p 159)

Amending/Closing Out the Following Grants: Fund 55-201: Fire FM Global Grant; Fund
55-203: BJA Bulletproof Vests Grant; and Fund 55-302: Orange Breckenridge
Redevelopment Grant. (CAF 13-42; Ordinance 13-21) This amends/closes out the above
mentioned funds. (See Ordinance Book 8, p 561)

Amending the General Fund and the Water Fund. (CAF 13-53; Ordinance 13-26) This
corrects Budget Amendment #25 and #7 respectively. (See Ordinance Book 8, p 571)

Amending Fund 510: Police Department and Fund 530: Fire Department of the General
Fund. (Reference: CAF 13-54; Ordinance 13-18) This allows for the appropriation of proceeds
of insurance claims back to the appropriate departments to offset repair costs. (See Ordinance
Book 8, p 555)



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 10 of 17

Authorizing an Additional Appropriation of $25,000 to the Departmental Budget for the
City Attorney. (Reference: CAF 13-56; Ordinance 13-28) This appropriation is necessary to
cover the attorney fees of the law firm of Tharrington Smith, LLP in connection with the Pitts,
Von Williams case. (See Ordinance Book 8, p 575)

Closing Out the Water Main Replacement/Relocation of the Red Bud Creek Bridge Project
Fund 43-848 and Amending Capital Reserve utilities Fund 70. (Reference: CAF 13-55;
Ordinance 13-27) This Ordinance returns the surplus funds to Capital Reserves Utilities and
closes out this project. (See Ordinance Bok 8, p 573)

Amending the General Fund – Recreation Department Budget. (Reference: CAF 13-59;
Ordinance 13-29) This amendment will budget the proceeds of the fund raiser $6,623) plus an
additional $377 from general recreation donations to cover fund raiser expenses and to offset
expenses of the upcoming summer production of The Sound of Music. (See Ordinance Book 8, p
577)

Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month of March 2013. (Reference:
CAF 13-45). The Finance Director has reviewed the tax releases and refunds and has found them
to be in order. (See below)

March 2013 Tax Releases

Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2000 11.20$

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2001 11.20$

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 12.20$

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 253.75$

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 12.80$

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 13.12$

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 13.40$

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 63.74$

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 13.40$

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 13.74$

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 13.40$

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 13.74$



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 11 of 17

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 20.34$

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 20.85$

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 21.06$

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 21.59$

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 21.06$

Cordell, Will iam F Correct Ownership 2010 231.48$

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 21.59$

Vision of Hope Intern Correct Ownership 2010 (231.48)$

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 21.06$

Cordell, Will iam F Correct Ownership 2011 231.43$

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 21.59$

Vision of Hope Intern Correct Ownership 2011 (231.43)$

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 21.06$

Cordell, Will iam F Correct Ownership 2012 231.43$

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 21.59$

Vision of Hope Intern Correct Ownership 2012 (231.43)$

Total R&P Prop. Releases 657.48$

Registered Vehicle Refunds

Brownson, Jacqueline R Pro-Rate 2011 5.15$

Hargrove, Linda Wade Pro-Rate 2011 3.95$

Clark, Elizabeth Leona Pro-Rate 2012 2.60$

Corbitt Hil ls Construction Pro-Rate 2012 61.59$

Hamm, Johnny Hartwell Pro-Rate 2012 9.05$

Hensley, Phyllis Ann Pro-Rate 2012 1.96$

Howes, Lebert Andre Pro-Rate 2012 4.15$

Hughes, Howard Arthur Pro-Rate 2012 2.49$

Johnson, Sabrina Antio Pro-Rate 2012 4.16$

Kelley, Tryone Pro-Rate 2012 23.61$

Rouse, Jamon Andre Pro-Rate 2012 63.71$

Thorpe, Julia Henderson Pro-Rate 2012 1.56$

Vaughan, Ernest Lee Pro-Rate 2012 1.99$

Watkins, Lloyd Quintin Correct Situs 2012 47.56$

Wilkerson, Sandra Harris Pro-Rate 2012 5.74$

Total Refunds 239.27$



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 12 of 17

Registered Vehicle

Releases

Moore, NE Dempsey Jr. Correct Situs 2011 15.32$

Perry,James Otis Pro-Rate 2011 1.80$

Allen, Helen Thomas Pro-Rate 2012 4.24$

Allen, Lathisha Monique Pro-Rate 2012 19.26$

All iance Rehabil itation Charitable All O 2012 95.64$

Carroll, Larry Darnell Pro-Rate 2012 58.50$

Carter, Brandon Jamail Pro-Rate 2012 37.61$

Catlett, Robert Stephen Pro-Rate 2012 1.09$

Cawthorne, Wallace Graham Pro-Rate 2012 38.08$

Clodfelter, Catherine Correct Value 2012 5.01$

Dieng, Xernorna Yoland Pro-Rate 2012 28.59$

Ellis, Charles Lawrence Correct Situs 2012 73.53$

ETC of Henderson Correct Value 2012 43.73$

Henderson, Charline Shunta Pro-Rate 2012 9.13$

Henderson, Orthopaedic Pro-Rate 2012 11.95$

Henderson, Will ie Correct Situs 2012 164.09$

Howard, Bettie Denise Transfer Out 2012 60.54$

Kelly, Jazman Shua Pro-Rate 2012 33.69$

Kerr Area Transportation Auth. Charitable All O 2012 6,900.52$

Kodavanti Viswahdham Pro-Rate 2012 4.43$

Leyes, Gladys Pro-Rate 2012 11.17$

McLaughlin, Amy Ball Pro-Rate 2012 38.26$

Melchoir, Jessica Kamill Pro-Rate 2012 2.16$

Perry,James Otis Pro-Rate 2012 15.28$

Ragland, Tiffany Nicole Pro-Rate 2012 9.48$

Washington, Sheila Lorraine Pro-Rate 2012 50.69$

Wilkins, Kevin Michael Military Non Resident 2012 144.61$

Williams, Jacquelin Hawley Pro-Rate 2012 9.76$

Total Reg Veh Releases 7,888.16$

Total Reg Veh Releases

& Refunds 8,127.43$

Total All Release & Refunds 8,784.91$

City Manager Griffin asked to remove the Authorizing an Additional Appropriation of $25,000
to the Departmental Budget for the City Attorney from the Consent Agenda. (Reference: CAF
13-56; Ordinance 13-28) See next page.



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 13 of 17

There were no other requests for removal. Mayor O’Geary asked for a motion to approve the
consent Agenda excluding the Authorizing an Additional Appropriation of $25,000 to the
Departmental Budget for the City Attorney from the Consent Agenda.

Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of the Consent Agenda as amended. Motion
seconded by Council Member Kearney and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Kearney,
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, and Daye. NO: None. ABSTAIN:
None. ABSENT: None.

Council Member Kearney expressed his appreciation for the diligence in saving dollars on the
Red Bud Creek Bridge Project. City Manager Griffin said the work of Assistant City Manager
Frank Frazier and Engineering Director Peter Sokalski were responsible for the savings.

Authorizing an Additional Appropriation of $25,000 to the Departmental Budget for the
City Attorney. (Reference: CAF 13-56; Ordinance 13-28)

City Manager Griffin said in light of an earlier discussion this evening regarding Council’s desire
to keep the $50,000 reserved for the REEF Project intact, and since this amendment includes a
portion of that REEF appropriation of $50,000, it is appropriate to increase the fund balance
appropriation from the General Fund to cover the additional costs of fees incurred by the law
firm of Tharrington Smith, LLP for legal services in connection with the Pitts, Von Williams
case also be taken from the General Fund.

There was no discussion. Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure.

Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Ordinance 13-28, Authorizing an Additional
Appropriation of $25,000 from the General Fund’s Undesignated Balance to the Departmental
Budget for the City Attorney. Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke and APPROVED by
the following vote: YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye and
Kearney. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None.

WORK SESSION

City Manager Griffin asked Economic Development Commission Director Stuart Litvin to
introduce the new owners of the Quality Inn. Mr. Litvin introduced Anjali Koul as owner of the
Inn, her daughter, Manasvi Koul and Floor Manager, Joel Casey. Ms. Koul gave a brief
PowerPoint presentation showing before and after pictures of the Inn. Approximately 20
Henderson residents are employed by the Inn and Ms. Koul was proud to share all the work to
improve the Inn was done locally with local products, workers, etc. She also asked for assistance
from the City to make the Inn more traveler friendly. She asked for road repairs, more lighting
and removal of trees.

Mr. Griffin said the issues would be considered during the budget process and suggested Ms.
Koul speak with the State as it was felt some of the trees were located on State property.

Before leaving the three introduced themselves to each Council Member.



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 14 of 17

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

City Clerk McCrackin advised no citizen wished to address City Council.

REPORTS

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem (No Report)

b) City Manager – City Manager Griffin felt it appropriate to advise Council of the
declaration of surplus property and offered an opportunity for discussion. There was
none.

c) City Attorney – City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. said Mr. Bill Faison would like to purchase
the rights on an easement along the Southerland Mill property. He said this would got
through the proper bidding process.

d) City Clerk – City Clerk McCrackin reminded Council of the groundbreaking ceremony
for the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Improvements on Tuesday, 14 May; the
Ethics Webinar on Wednesday, 15 May and the Special Called Meeting on Monday 20
May.

With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to go into Closed
Session and stated there would be no report following the session.

CLOSED SESSION

Council Member Rainey moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(3) for an Attorney-Client Privilege Matter, and G.S. §143-318.11(a)(6) for a Personnel
Matter. Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-Jenkins and unanimously approved.

Council Member Rainey moved for Council to convene in open session. Motion seconded by
Council Member Daeke and unanimously approved.

ADJOURNMENT

Council Member Rainey moved for adjournment. Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke,
and was unanimously approved. The meeting adjourned 9:34 p.m.

____________________________
James D. O’Geary
Mayor ATTEST:

_____________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 15 of 17

Appendix A

Mr Mayor, Members of the Council, Madam Clerk, Mr. Manager

Thank you for allowing me to appear before you tonight on behalf of the Kerr Tar
Regional Council of Governments.
The Council of Governments, which you helped create in 1975, which you help
finance and which you help govern through your appointments to the COG Board
of Directors, is in serious financial difficulty. Regrettably, but dutifully, I am here
to speak to you on this matter tonight.
My name is Danny Wright. I am a member of the COG Board of Directors, serving
since 1984. I live and work in Vance County. I am Chairman of the newly formed
Finance Committee of the COG. The Kerr Tar Council of Governments consist of 5
Counties (Franklin, Granville, Person, Vance and Warren) and 16 municipalities
within those counties. I have provided you with a list of the member units and
their appointments to the COG Board of Directors to give you a sense of the
leadership of our organization. Ultimately, the COG Board of Directors is
responsible for the proper administration and management of the COG. As one
member of the board, I accept responsibility for the situation we are in. As a
board, we are taking the necessary steps to ensure the long-term economic
viability of the Kerr-Tar Council of Governments. I appear before you tonight at
the board’s request.

The operating expenses of the COG are funded through the administrative dollars
allowed for each of the grants they receive and administer. The local
membership assessments that you pay on an annual basis is used to pay the
required match for the grants received. For the 5 year period ended June 30,
2012, our member units paid $501,064 in local assessments to the COG. These
assessments were used for matches of federal and state grants that totalled more
than $30 million dollars in the same 5 year period. That is a return of $61 in
federal and state dollars for every $1.00 of local membership assessments. 61 to
1 is a nice ROI. That is simply what COGs do. There are 16 COGs in North Carolina
and 506 across the nation. Authorized by federal statute and formed by state
statute, COGs develop regional solutions to regional problems by fostering
regional collaboration. Counties and cities do not exist in isolation, our destinies
are intertwined. This COG has a long distinguished history of helping to improve
local governments in a variety of ways, including, but not limited to,



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 16 of 17

administration, planning and GIS mapping, transportation, economic
development, work force development, aging, grant writing, CDBG and HUD
Administration grants, as well as providing additional technical assistance on a
contractual basis to member units that otherwise might not be able to afford such
services. The COG also serves as the “convener” on a host of issues relating to
our state and federal partnerships. There is significant value in local governments
pulling together and seeking regional solutions to regional problems.

And now for the problem and our request.

During the fiscal year 2011-2012, the COG began to have cash flow problems in
it’s General Fund that led to the unintentional borrowing of and improper use of
restricted federal funds. (EDA) Let me say that there is no missing money, no
intentional wrongdoing, and no criminal activity involved. What occurred,
happened as a result of poor accounting procedures and practices with respect to
controlling expenses within the allotted contract revenues, with respect to the
monitoring of prepaid expenses and receivables to ensure that the fair values
reported in the balance sheet are supported by the underlying documentation,
and with respect to the accurate tracking of cash balances within the centralized
cash account.
In the June 30th 2012 Audit Report prepared by Phillips, Dorsey, Thomas, Waters
& Brafford, PA, the following significant finding was reported:

See Audit Page 78-79 (Read the finding)

When EDA received the audit report, they had a “hissy fit” as my grandma used to
say. And rightfully so. EDA has demanded that we return to them the entire
balance in the RLF Loan Account totaling $311,107.30 immediately. We don’t
have the funds and that is the reason for our request.

When news of our financial difficulty came to the Board’s attention, we
immediately implemented a Deficit Reduction Plan on 10/01/12. (Read the
highlights)

request Letter (Attached)



Minute Book 42
13 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 17 of 17

We believe that once the funds have been paid back in full to EDA, they will view
our future more favorably. In the event that this COG is dissolved, the federal
funds earmarked for our region on a per capita basis, will continue to flow to this
region, but through another COG; ie; Triangle J in Raleigh. Then we will really be a
little fish in a big pond with little or no say in the decision making process, and
they will take their assessment share off of the top, which they are entitled to do.

Thank you for allowing me to speak to you on this matter. Any consideration that
you may give our request will be grateful for. We will work hard to regain your
trust and restore the confidence that is essential for government to be effective
and for partnerships to work.

Questions?



Minute Book 42
20 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 1 of 5

City Council Minutes
Special Called Meeting

20 May 2013

PRESENT

Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M.
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Vernon
L. Brown, and George M. Daye.

ABSENT

None.

STAFF PRESENT

City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Clerk Esther J.
McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Katherine C. Brafford,
Engineering Director, Peter Sokalski, Planning and Community Development Director Erris
Dunston, Fire Chief Danny Wilkerson, and Code Compliance Director Corey Williams.

CALL TO ORDER

The 20 May 2013 Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by Mayor
James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal
Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC.

ROLL CALL

The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.

NEW BUSINESS

Awarding of Departmental Handgun and Badge to Retiring Police Chief Keith Sidwell
(Reference: CAF 13-61; Resolution 13-43)

City Manager Griffin said in keeping with tradition, the City would like to award Retiring Police
Chief his badge and weapon.

There were no questions. Mayor O’Geary then asked for the pleasure of Council.

Council Member Kearney moved the approval of Resolution 13-43, Awarding of Departmental
Handgun and Badge to Retiring Police Chief Keith Sidwell. Motion seconded by Council
Member Inscoe and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe,



Minute Book 42
20 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 2 of 5

Rainey, and Brown. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Peace-Jenkins, Daeke and
Daye. (See Resolution Book 3, pp. 187)

Presentation of Proposed FY 2013-2014 Budget

Mayor O’Geary recognized the City Manager at this time. Mr. Griffin thanked Council for its
patience in allowing a little extra time to compile the budget and for attending this special
meeting. Mr. Griffin reminded everyone that a budget must be provided to the governing body
by June 1 and approved by June 30 of each year. He said just before this meeting he received
notice from the League of Municipalities a summary of the Senate State Budget and plans to
share a portion of their decisions later in the presentation as they affect the City’s budget
negatively.

(Clerk’s Note: Council Member Daeke arrived at 6:04; Council Member Peace-Jenkins arrived
at 6:06 and Council Member Daye arrived at 6:08 p.m.)

He then provided a summary of the budget through a brief PowerPoint presentation. He
reminded Council that the budget must be balanced and said in difficult times such as these, as
the City tightens the budget, both citizens and staff are affected. Mr. Griffin said the revenue
stream is monitored and prioritized. He said the proposed budget, at $35,751,900, is seriously
constrained and adjusted for the inter-fund transfer. The budget is balanced without using
dollars from the Fund Balance and with a $00.083 cent property tax increase, $00.50 sanitation
fee increase, a Regional Water rate increase of 5%, a Water Rate increase of 8% and a Sewer
Rate increase of 2.5%.

On the personnel side, there is no cost of living increase; however career development is funded,
and one firefighter position is unfrozen. Medical insurance decreased 5% which is a bright spot
because of the work of employees and retirees participating in the wellness program. Mr. Griffin
suggested a portion of that savings be used as a wellness incentive to continue this trend.

Mr. Griffin reminded everyone that the General Fund is comprised of property tax dollar (39%),
sales tax (15%) and sanitation fees (11%). The remainder of this Fund comes from
miscellaneous sources. Property taxes and sanitation fees are controlled by Council.

Mr. Griffin shared that Council made a good choice in asking that the Fund Balance not be used
because of unexpected issues in the General Fund. He said property taxes are not coming in as
planned. There has been a delayed billing to the Hospital for real estate position ($330,000
approx.) and if they are not paid before June 30, the Fund Balance will have to be utilized to
balance the FY 12-13 budget. Mr. Griffin added the Hospital is appealing the personal property
taxes.

Council Member Rainey asked what the Hospital is appealing and when the process will
conclude. Mr. Griffin responded they are appealing the appraised value of the personal property.
He said the County Tax Collector set the value and he expressed concern that the Hospital will
also appeal the real estate portion. Mr. Griffin said he did not have a timeframe for the appeal.
Mr. Rainey asked if the FY 13-14 budget included the $330,000 and Mr. Griffin responded yes,
it is included.



Minute Book 42
20 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 3 of 5

Mr. Rainey then asked if the budget reflects the loss of privilege license fees. Mr. Griffin said he
reduced the privilege license fees by approximately $78,000; however, since balancing the FY
13-14 budget, two (2) internet cafes are now out of business which reduces the privilege license
fees for FY12-13 by about $129,000 which means additional changes to the FY13-14 budget.

Council Member Coffey asked if the City will receive the real estate tax dollars once the appeal
is processed. Mr. Griffin said since the Hospital paid the County real estate tax that he felt the
City will receive its portion. He said the Hospital was not billed the City real estate tax due to an
error which listed the Hospital as non-profit in 1998.

Council Member Kearney said he understood the impact could be significant once the Hospital
situation is determined. Mr. Griffin agreed.

Council Daeke asked if any monies were received in FY 12-13 from the Hospital. Mr. Griffin
said FY 13-14 is the first year since the Hospital went public.

Mr. Griffin went on to say he anticipates the Powell Bill dollars will be approximately $20,000
less than the current year year and cost of operation and the State’s new unemployment tax on
positions will increase. He said sales taxes are holding steady; however, receipts lag two months
so the final figures will not be known until mid-September.

Council Member Rainey asked what the status of uncollected taxes is for past years and asked
what can be done to assist in collecting taxes. Mr. Griffin asked Finance Director Brafford to
provide the levy information and said he has asked the Tax Collector to start with the oldest first,
and discontinue the policy of going alphabetically.

Mayor O’Geary asked if the policy has been changed. Mr. Griffin responded he has requested
the Collector start in the oldest years and work forward but to his knowledge this has not been
implemented. The practice has been to go down the arrears list alphabetically vs. oldest years
first.

Mr. Griffin then directed attention to the Undesignated Fund Balance which the LGC maintains
should be no less than 8%. The City is currently at about 13% which is not close to the local
goal of 35% and stressed the importance of protecting this account.

Council Member Inscoe asked if the Powell Bill is included in Undesignated Fund Balance. Mr.
Griffin responded no.

Mr. Griffin then moved to the General Fund saying the proposed budget is $15.7M which
compares to the Fiscal Year 2009 budget. He said personnel is the largest portion of General
Fund, followed by Operations, Debt Service, and then equipment and capital, and contingency.
He said needs are not being met for equipment and capital which are services citizens expect to
see. Public safety costs are not covered by property taxes.

Mr. Griffin said the increase in the General Fund comes from Joint Programs which increased
$40,300, a pay study, employee incentive for the wellness program and a contracted service for



Minute Book 42
20 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 4 of 5

the administrator that negotiates health insurance. Garage repair increases comes mainly from an
aging fleet/vehicles. Asset Forfeiture will be relied on for police vehicle purchase.

Mr. Griffin said the 5% increase in Regional Water is for operations. chemicals costs and capital
improvements on the Clearwell and chemical pit. He said the Clearwell roof is falling and in
need of repair.

Council Member Inscoe asked about the Water Fund Balance and Mr. Griffin referred Council to
Page WF2 under the Water Fund Tab. Mr. Inscoe then asked if the $2M plus includes the
current expenditures for water projects. Mr. Griffin said no.

With the Sewer Fund, Mr. Griffin proposed a 2.5% rate increase which is actually good news
because last year it was thought the rate would be in the 9% range. The rate stabilization plan
provides for less of an increase than considered during discussions in previous budget years. Mr.
Griffin also said the Elmwood interceptor costs are included in the FY13-14 estimates although it
is hopeful the City will receive funding for this project. Mr. Griffin also said he expects savings
to customers once the new plant is up and running as there should be a reduction in labor,
chemicals and utilities.

Council Member Kearney said he did not realize Franklin and Warren Counties are in the sewer
business. Assistant City Manager Frazier said both counties own their own sewer plants.

Mr. Griffin then reviewed the major initiatives that are underway.

Mr. Griffin spoke next about health insurance. He said the new lower rates will be reflected
starting in July and employees with dependent coverage will see a slight increase in their
premiums.

Council Member Daeke asked what the 5.2% decrease provides dollar wise to the City. Mr.
Griffin asked Ms. Brafford to follow up with the Human Resources Director for this calculation

He concluded by saying he and the staff look forward to working with Council during this
process. He said everyone understands this is not a pretty budget and reminded Council that the
first Budget Work Session is this Thursday night beginning with Regional Water and Water,
along with the related funds.

Mr. Griffin then reviewed the Senate budget as provided by the League of Municipalities. Much
of the information is beyond the control of local governments which is not encouraging for
coming years.

Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any further questions. There were none. Mayor O’Geary
reminded everyone no meals would be provided prior to the Budget Work Sessions.



Minute Book 42
20 May 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 5 of 5

ADJOURNMENT

Council Member Daeke moved for adjournment. Motion seconded by Council Member Brown,
and was unanimously approved. The meeting adjourned 7:00 p.m.

____________________________
James D. O’Geary
Mayor ATTEST:

_____________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk



Minute Book 42
23 May 2013 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes

Page 1 of 7

City Council Minutes
Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #1 - DRAFT

23 May 2013

PRESENT

Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members Sara M. Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe,
D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Vernon L. Brown and George M.
Daye.

ABSENT

Council Member James C. Kearney, Sr.

STAFF PRESENT

City Manager Ray Griffin, Assistant City Manager, Frank Frazier, City Clerk Esther J.
McCrackin, Finance Director Katherine Brafford, Kerr Lake Regional Water Plant Manager
Christy Lipscomb, Engineering Director Peter Sokalski and Fiscal Compliance Officer Edna
Vaught.

CALL TO ORDER

The 23 May 2013 Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #1 was called to order by
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers,
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC.

ROLL CALL

The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.

OPENING REMARKS

Mayor O’Geary welcomed everyone and asked City Manager Griffin to begin the budgetary
work session.



Minute Book 42
23 May 2013 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes

Page 2 of 7

City Manager Mr. Griffin asked Kerr Lake Regional Water Director Christy Lipscomb to share
good news before beginning the work session. Ms. Lipscomb said NC Rural Water Association
(NCRWA) just named water from the Kerr Lake Regional Water facility as having the best
flavor in North Carolina. She said once the winner is published in the Rural Water Magazine,
notice will be sent to the local paper. Council and staff gave a round of applause for this
accomplishment.

Mr. Griffin then began the budget work session with the Car Park issues from the 20 May 2013
meeting.

Car Park Issues

In response to Council Member Kearney’s request, Mr. Griffin distributed a property tax
increase matrix showing how the proposed increase would affect various valued properties. He
also said that Council Member Inscoe asked the City Clerk to search for municipal tax rates and
the Clerk distributed a copy of that information to each Council Member.

In response to Council Member Daeke’s request regarding medical insurance rates, Mr. Griffin
said currently the cost is $4,900 and it will be decreasing to $4,750 per person. Overall, the
estimated savings will be approximately $53,928. He also said retiree Medicare rates will be
increasing according to information provided from Human Resources Director Cathy Brown.

Council Member Inscoe asked for information regarding the earned interest from Granville
County water payment. Mr. Griffin said $4,488 so far and stated the CD will mature in August
2015. He further advised the interest cannot be taken without penalty.

The discussion then turned to Regional Water.

Kerr Lake Regional Water (KLRW) - Mr. Griffin said the recommendation of a 5% increase
is due mainly to what he called budget creep, meaning operational costs that impact regional
water operations. He said the cost of chemicals is expected to climb an estimated $40,000; the
BioSolids contract has increased $29,500 and Duke Progress Energy rates are expected to
increase approximately $12,000. He explained there are three major capital projects that are not
included in the 20MGD project --- the Clearwell repair, estimated at $410,000; repairs to the
chemical pit and replacement of the chemical storage tank are estimated at $190,000 and
replacement of a 1998 truck with 134,044 miles is estimated at $32,000.

(Council Member Daeke arrived at 6:08 p.m.)

Mr. Griffin explain due to the recession, water sales have remained relatively flat and went on to
review the debt rate. He summarized the review by saying the capital reserve account is working
as it should.



Minute Book 42
23 May 2013 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes

Page 3 of 7

Next Mr. Griffin walked Council through the budget structure saying 97% of this funding comes
from the sale of water to Oxford and Warren County. Miscellaneous funds comprise the
remainder of the funding. He explained approximately $6,000 is set aside for the State’s new
unemployment tax required for each employee. He expects retiree health insurance for Regional
Water to increase by $3,800, and $6,600 is included in the budget for a pay classification study.
No change in staffing is anticipated. Mr. Griffin then asked if Council had any questions.

(Council Member Daye arrived at 6:18 p.m.)

Council Member Rainey asked if chemicals were priced/purchased yearly. KLRW Director
Lipscomb responded some chemicals are purchased yearly; however, some volatile chemicals
have to be priced and purchased monthly.

Council Member Coffey asked how much has been spent on the IBT (Inter-basin Transfer).
Assistant City Manager Frazier said approximately $607,715 has been expended to date.

Council Member Inscoe prefaced his statements by saying this is the most challenging budget he
has worked on as a council member. He went on to recap the aggressive and progressive
projects that were accomplished during the year such as new sewer lines on William and
Nicholas streets and the waste water project. Mr. Inscoe said both the City and citizens are
hurting due to lack of jobs and the recession, and it is Council’s responsibility to save dollars
wherever possible for the citizens of Henderson. With that said, Mr. Inscoe distributed photos of
the KLRW facility which he took earlier in the day and pointed out the failing concrete and
deteriorating, leaking tanks. Mr. Inscoe took additional steps during the day to speak with a
contractor and obtained a rough estimate of $182,600 to sandblast, treat and repair the concrete.
Mr. Inscoe summarized his statements by saying his vote would be to replace the chemical tanks,
and defer the Clearwell repair by adding it to the 20MGD major expenditure.

Mr. Inscoe continued saying Council needs to make hard decisions and he emphasized the 1 to 1
ratio between Regional Water and Water.

Mr. Inscoe then said he felt employees would prefer to have a pay increase rather than spending
dollars on a pay classification study. He expressed concerns about performing a pay
classification study when Council would be unable to implement it this year.

Next, Mr. Inscoe expressed concern over the contingency increase of $20,000. He asked what
the contingency was last year. Mr. Griffin said it was $30,000 last year. Mr. Griffin said that the
contingency is for unforeseen issues that would keep Council from having to go into the Fund
Balance.

Council Member Coffey asked if the painting expense of $21,000 could be reduced by in-house
painting. KLRW Director Lipscomb said this was not routine painting. It was for coating some
of the rusted water lines. Mr. Griffin said the original request for this project was $40,000.



Minute Book 42
23 May 2013 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes

Page 4 of 7

Council Member Daeke expressed concern regarding the BioSolids contract increase. KLRW
Director Lipscomb said the State mandates the disposal of sludge. Assistant City Manager
Frazier said the company was asking for the increase due to transportation costs. After a brief
discussion, Ms. Lipscomb was asked to look into other options for disposal.

Council Member Rainey asked if the Recreation and Parks van could be used for transportation
to educational classes rather than purchasing a new truck. Council Member Inscoe said he
contacted two dealers in town for a ballpark cost and was told a pick-up truck could be
purchased for less than $20,000. KLRW Director Lipscomb said the request is not for a pick-up
but more of an SUV type vehicle so three (3) or more employees could travel to classes together.
Renting a vehicle for a day or two was suggested.

Council Member Coffey then turned the conversation back to the retiree health insurance costs
and that State tax on employees. She asked how many employees are in the department and the
retiree health costs. City Manager Griffin said there are thirteen (13) employees and the State
tax is based on employees, not position, so turnover creates additional payments to the State. He
said because this is the first year of the tax, $6,000 is a conservative amount to compensate for
any turnover and how the State might actually implement the tax. The $3,800 is due to an
employee who retired with more than 30 years of service, entitling that employee to free health
care.

Council Member Coffey asked about the personnel change and Mr. Griffin said the full-time
Maintenance Technician position was funded for only half the year in FY13, thus an increase in
personnel costs.

Council Member Rainey asked why the insurance costs show an increase even though health
insurance decreased. Mr. Griffin responded BCBS premiums went down for those in the active
plan. Medicare appears to be going up in certain age categories.

Council Member Inscoe then summarized his recommendation as follows: Eliminate the 5% rate
increase, include the balance of the Clearwell repairs with the 20MGD project and return the
balance back into Capital Reserve; do not do the $6,600 pay classification study; remove
$20,000 from Contingency; decrease $21,000 from contracted services for painting/coating and
spend no more than $22,000 on a new truck. Council Member Daeke agreed.

City Manager Griffin respectfully requested Council not eliminate the $6,600 pay classification
study saying although there currently are no dollars to fund the findings, it will provide data
necessary to help with job descriptions and identifying problems for future consideration.
Council Member Inscoe suggested this pay study be held in abeyance as the $6,600 is only a
portion of the total cost and asked the City Manager to provide the cost for a 2% salary increase.



Minute Book 42
23 May 2013 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes

Page 5 of 7

Mayor O’Geary called for the consensus of Council. Council Members Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey,
Peace-Jenkins and Daye were in agreement. Council Member Daeke again requested cost
comparisions for the BioSolids contract but was in agreement. Council Member Brown asked
that the cost of a vehicle be reviewed and was in agreement.

City Manager Griffin thanked Council for its guidance to staff. He then moved the discussion to
the Capital Reserve Regional Water Fund and gave a brief overview of this fund. There were no
questions so he moved the discussion to the CIP (Capital Improvement Projects) Funds.

Mr. Griffin explained the CIP funds exist for the life of the project and said they are audited
annually along with other funds. He said the Warren Meter Vault project is underway and the
High Speed Efficiency Pump project is in the beginning phase. These CIP funds are funded
externally and close when the projects are complete.

Council Member Inscoe said he finds it remarkable and was disappointed the Dispatch reporter
was not present to report on the success the City has had with debt service, especially for the
20MGD project. City Manager Griffin said this is certainly a bright spot in the budget to have
the needed dollars in reserve.

Fund 30: Water Fund

The discussion then moved to the Water Fund. This fund includes the Engineering Department,
Public Services Administration, the Water Distribution System, Customer Service, and
Administration.

City Manager Griffin said because of the recommendation already made, adjustments will be
made to this fund as 5% has already been resolved by eliminating the 5% Regional Water
increase. The other 3% relates to operational costs. He referred to several metric charts in the
budget work book that show the expected vs actual correlations between Regional Water and
Water. He also directed Council’s attention to the long-term water fund debt service which
should decrease when the Revenue Bonds retire in FY19-20.

Mr. Griffin reviewed the debt service which comprises approximately 12% of the total budget
for this fund and said it includes the 2” water line replacement project and the radio read water
meters; the Beckford Drive engineering report along with various other projects.

Mr. Griffin said having a Public Services Director to oversee these areas is important but only
two applicants have the background and knowledge necessary for the utilities part of the
position. He went on to say he is doubtful the position will be filled because the authorized pay
range is not competitive. Mr. Griffin said the City lacks depth of organizational knowledge and
job expertise in many areas. He stated there are too many areas where the City is “only one
person deep.”



Minute Book 42
23 May 2013 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes

Page 6 of 7

On the engineering side, there is no increase in staff this year. The department moved to the
Operations Center to work more closely with the water/sewer departments and Mr. Griffin said
along with many accomplishments, the department is in need of upgrading its AutoCAD
programs to be in licensure compliance.

Mayor O’Geary asked for details regarding the upgrade. Engineering Director Peter Sokalski
said it had recently come to his attention that the AutoCAD program currently in use is outdated
and the City only owns one license. Because the program is so old, it cannot be upgraded so a
new version needs to be purchased for each of the three staff at a cost of approximately $6,600
and a yearly fee of approximately $800.

Council Member Coffey inquired about the half-time meter reader and Mr. Griffin explained it
was a part-time employee with a salary of approximately $10,000.

Council Member Inscoe asked for the current balance in the Fund Balance fund. Mr. Griffin said
approximately $2.45M.

Council Member Rainey asked to be refreshed on the security deposits. Mr. Griffin said
customers who have not been cut off within 12 months will have their deposit returned. He said
the deposits are kept in a separate escrow account. Council Member Coffey verified this account
would increase/decrease with new customers and/or bad debts.

At this time City Manager Griffin asked if Council had any direction for staff. Council Member
Inscoe said he had not had time to review the Fund and asked for deferment until the next
meeting. Council agreed to carry this discussion to the next meeting.

City Manager Griffin moved the discussion back to 70: Capital Reserve Utilities Fund, saying
this fund has been hit hard in FY 12 and 13 due to projects such as the needed repairs on Shirley
Drive, Harriett Street and Perry Avenue. He emphasized the need to rebuild this fund to be
prepared for future projects.

Mr. Griffin credited Assistant City Manager Frazier and Engineering Director Sokalski for
bringing in the Red Bud Water Line Project under budget.

Mr. Griffin said this concluded what was planned for discussion this evening. He said with
Council’s consent Tuesday’s meeting would begin with McGill Associations providing an
update on the CIP plan. Then a discussion on the Water and Sewer Fund. It was the consensus
of Council to meet a little longer to reduce the number of work sessions so Mr. Griffin will also
prepare for a General Fund discussion on the Powell Bill, LEO and depending on time move to
Public Safety.

Mayor O’Geary asked if there was anything else Council wished to discuss. There were no
questions so Mayor O’Geary asked if Council wished to adjourn.



Minute Book 42
23 May 2013 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes

Page 7 of 7

Guidance for Staff:

To summarize the discussion, Council’s consensus on this evening’s discussion is:

 Delaying a decision on the Pay Classification Study;
 Eliminating the 5% Regional Rate increase;
 Eliminating 5% of the 8% recommended Water Rate increase;
 Removing the $20,000 contingency in the Regional Water Fund;
 Eliminating $21,000 for painting/coating;
 Eliminating the Clearwell project and combining its balance with the 20MGD project

thus removing the $410,000; and
 Limiting the cost of a new truck to $22,000.

Council requested the cost of a 2% salary increase.
Council requested optional costs for sludge removal.
Council requested additional estimates regarding the truck purchase.

ADJOURNMENT

Council Member Coffey moved for adjournment. Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey
and unanimously approved. The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m.

____________________________
James D. O’Geary
Mayor

ATTEST:

_____________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk



Minute Book 42
28 May 2013 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes

Page 1 of 11

City Council Minutes
Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #2 - DRAFT

28 May 2013

PRESENT

Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members Sara M. Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe,
D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Vernon L. Brown and George M.
Daye.

ABSENT

Council Member James C. Kearney, Sr.

STAFF PRESENT

City Manager Ray Griffin, Assistant City Manager, Frank Frazier, City Clerk Esther J.
McCrackin, Finance Director Katherine Brafford, Police Chief Keith Sidwell, Fire Chief Danny
Wilkerson, Engineering Director Peter Sokalski, Recreation and Parks Director Alan Gill, Youth
Services Director Donna Stearns, Code Compliance Director Corey Williams, Planning and
Community Development Director Erris Dunston.

CALL TO ORDER

The 28 May 2013 Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #2 was called to order by
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers,
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC.

ROLL CALL

The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.

OPENING REMARKS

Mayor O’Geary said it was good to see everyone for the second workshop session and asked
City Manager Griffin to begin the work session.



Minute Book 42
28 May 2013 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes

Page 2 of 11

Car Park Issues

City Manager Mr. Griffin said a request was made at the previous work session regarding the
total expense for a 2% COLA (cost of living adjustment). He said it would be $168,540,
including the fringe benefits (i.e., 401K, retirement, FICA, and Medicare).

CIP Plan Update

Mr. Griffin said first he would like to talk about the update to the Utilities Capital Improvement
Plan (CIP). This plan was developed by McGill and Associates several years ago and has been
updated with the assistance of City staff. He then asked Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier to
begin the evening with additional comments. Mr. Frazier distributed two spreadsheets which
McGill Associates compiled in conjunction with their work with the City: one table showed the
estimated costs for various projects within the CIP over the next ten years to the Water Fund.
The other was a financial analysis summary of the Water, Regional and Sewer Funds. He then
introduced Mr. Dennie Martin from McGill Associates who explained further how these
spreadsheets are a roadmap to upcoming projects. Mr. Martin said once Council approves the
FY14 budget, McGill Associates will be able to adjust the plan, work on funding ideas and future
plans for these funds. He did say the State General Assembly is setting in motion action that
requires municipal water systems to achieve positive income or the State may have the ability to
take over the system. Mr. Martin said this is something that will need to be monitored as
decisions are made in the future.

(Council Member Rainey left the meeting at 6:20 p.m. and returned at 6:25 p.m. Council
Member Daeke arrived at 6:26 p.m.)

There was a general discussion regarding the suggestions on both sheets with Mr. Martin saying
McGill has taken a conservative approach which will change as the plan moves forward and they
receive more accurate information to work with over the coming years. Mr. Griffin said the rate
stabilization process is working and he would like to begin a rate stabilization fund for the CIP
once the budget is finalized.

Council Member Coffey summarized the discussion by saying the figures will change with
inflation, and Council’s decision on rates.

Water/Sewer Funds

City Manager Griffin reviewed the discussion from Thursday night by saying Council removed
the 5% increase from Regional Water which effectively removes the 5% increase from Water
rate which was recommended at 8%. That leaves 3% of the recommended increase left to
discuss.

Council Member Inscoe inquired about the percent of dollars coming from the Water Fund for
the Public Utilities Director position. Mr. Griffin responded the position is funded 50/50



Minute Book 42
28 May 2013 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes

Page 3 of 11

between Water and Sewer. Mr. Inscoe also asked what amount is budgeted for this position.
Mr. Griffin said $77,000 is the maximum which is still not enough. He went on to say the
position has been vacant since the mid-2000s and stated only two individuals have been
interviewed that qualify for the position --- both were asking for a salary in the high $80,000 to
low $90,000 range. Mr. Griffin said the position is budgeted for the full year.

Council Member Daeke asked how much was needed for a 1% decrease and Mr. Griffin
responded approximately $25,000. Council Member Inscoe asked how much of the Fund
Balance has been used in FY13. Mr. Griffin responded two million plus based on the audit
figures. Mr. Griffin also said the proposed budget includes income from Vance County Phase1A
and Franklin County.

When the discussion waned, Mr. Griffin asked for guidance from Council and Council Members
indicated they were unhappy with the 3% increase.

Council Member Inscoe then returned the discussion to the Public Utilities Director (PUD). Mr.
Griffin said Assistant City Manager Frazier has taken on the responsibility of PUD and has
assisted in developing a better working relationship between the three utility departments along
with his other responsibilities. Mr. Inscoe acknowledged the excellent job Mr. Frazier has done.
Mr. Griffin emphasized the serious needs in this area as the City is only one man deep in this
area. He feels it is a critical, blended position between Public Works and Public Utilities to have
a better unified Public Services department. However, he said if Council is unwilling to
reclassify the position with a competitive salary, it will be impossible to fill. Council Member
Daeke asked if the position is not filled would the savings be 1.5% of the proposed increase. Mr.
Griffin said it would create enough savings to reduce 2.2% of the 3% recommended increase.

Council Member Inscoe next asked what is included in the Contingency for the Water Fund and
how much has been used in FY13. A brief discussion followed with Mr. Griffin saying cutting
out Contingency is risky.

Council Member Coffey was not optimistic that this position would be filled in the near future.
A discussion ensued regarding eliminating the position to reduce the recommended Water rate
increase. Mr. Griffin said if the PUD position is eliminated, $75,000 to reduce 3% and the
Contingency could be reduced by $17,350 in order to achieve a 0% Water rate increase and 0%
Regional Water rate increase and lowered the Sewer Fund increase by 1.5%.

Council Member Rainey confirmed with Mr. Griffin that most candidates for the PUD position
do not meet the standards. Mr. Griffin said most candidates could be the Public Works Director
but the vision is to have someone who understands both water and sewer utilities and could
combine those operations for a fully unified department. The candidate would need to understand
water/sewer and street maintenance. A position of Public Works Director can be filled with a
$77,000 range salary; however, that means no public utilities director. Mr. Griffin reminded
Council of the reorganization that has already occurred by creating a Fiscal Compliance Officer
position to monitor the billing/invoicing, grants, etc. He also recognized the knowledge and



Minute Book 42
28 May 2013 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes

Page 4 of 11

ability of Operations Division Manager (Water/Sewer/Street) Andy Perkinson who does an
excellent job but again the department’s leadership is only one man deep.

Council Member Inscoe then asked what falls under the Contracted Services and whether they
are strictly engineering services. Mr. Frazier responded this includes issues such as tank
cleaning which occurs every three-four years and said the cost of this is spread over the years
rather than paying a lump sum at one time. He said time clocks, security and pest control are
also included in Contracted Services. Mr. Inscoe asked how much has been spent this year and
Mr. Frazier responded approximately $66,000. Finance Director Kathy Brafford added the
billing system for water payments is also included in this item.

Council Member Rainey asked about why there was an increase in the Bad Debt Reserve. Mr.
Griffin responded the City will always have bad debts to write off.

At this time, City Manager Griffin asked for Council’s goal. Council Member Inscoe said 0%.
Mr. Griffin said they have 0% if they take the PUD position and $17,350 from Contingency.
There was a brief discussion about taking funds from other areas but Mr. Griffin asked Council
to take the funds from Contingency if they take anything at all.

Mr. Griffin then restated what Council seemed to be saying. He said Council wishes to eliminate
the PUD position; half of the budget cost yields $57,650 for the Water fund portion which when
you add $17,350 from Contingency reduction eliminates the additional 3% Water rate increase.
That leaves $57,650 to apply to the Sewer Fund recommended increase. He said with Council
suggestions, approximately $36,600 is needed to eliminate the Sewer Fund increase.

Mayor O’Geary asked for the consensus of Council. Council Members Coffey said she was fine
with a 1% increase in Sewer. Council Members Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown
and Daye were all in agreement.

Once again Mr. Griffin summarized that the consensus was accepting the Sewer budget with a
1% increase and accepting the changes in the Water Fund with 0% increase. The Mayor and
Council Members confirmed this restated consensus position.

Before moving on to the General Fund, Mr. Griffin asked Council to review the scheduled debt
service with the Sewer plant project and shared these figures include the Elmwood Interceptor
project. He said receiving 0% interest from the State for the project was a blessing that greatly
reduced the recommended rate increase. He said great strides have been made in developing
tools to deal with debt service.

General Fund

Mr. Griffin started the General Fund discussion with the two largest departments; Police and
Fire. He reminded Council that due to the loss of the internet café businesses, revenues have
decreased. He then asked Police Chief Keith Sidwell to come forward.



Minute Book 42
28 May 2013 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes

Page 5 of 11

Police Department

Mr. Griffin listed some of the departmental requests that make up the budgetary increase for
FY14. He mentioned capital outlay ($33,100), maintenance and repair ($30,000), the new State
payroll tax ($28,000) and employee benefits – including career development, FICA, LEO,
worker’s comp) of approximately $61,300. Mr. Griffin also said there was an error of $60,000
as this amount was double counted

Mr. Griffin also explained the creation of a new line item separating holiday pay from structured
overtime pay which relates to those departments that provide 24/7 services.

Council Member Inscoe asked about the Discretionary Fund under Asset Forfeiture. Chief
Sidwell said this is a buffer to cover over time and clarified Asset Forfeiture funds may only be
used once overtime dollars in the Police Department Fund have been expensed.

(Council Member Brown left the meeting at 7:18 p.m. and returned at 7:20 p.m.)

Council Member Coffey asked to details regarding Contracted Services. Chief Sidwell listed
contracts such as for A/C, copiers, streetscape, and the alarm system.

Council Member Daeke asked how Asset Forfeiture dollars may be used. Chief Sidwell said in
2005 he began using the dollars to replace much needed vehicles saying when he became Police
Chief one unit was using PVC to hold the seat in place. He said lights for vehicles can also be
used with these dollars. Council Member Inscoe asked if monies for bullet proof vests come
from Asset Forfeiture. Chief Sidwell said bulletproof vest funds come mostly from grants.

Council Member Daeke then asked about auto maintenance. Chief Sidwell said it is difficult to
project these costs but with the purchase of new vehicles the maintenance should be lower than
in the past. Council Member Inscoe asked how many vehicles the department plans to purchase.
Chief Sidwell responded four (4) plus an SUV.

Council Member Coffey asked how wrecked vehicles are replaced. Chief Sidwell responded
mainly with insurance and Asset Forfeiture dollars. He commended Captain Twisdale for his
efforts to keep one extra vehicle available per shift. Council Member Coffey also asked whether
the new vehicles come with the same warrantees as any other new vehicle. Chief Sidwell
responded yes.

Council Member Rainey asked what happens to impounded vehicles. Chief Sidwell said some
are used for undercover work but went on to say many have existing liens or are rented so the
force is unable to keep many of the vehicles. When discussion turned to selling the vehicles
being replaced, the Chief said any sales dollars for vehicles purchased with Asset Forfeiture
dollars have to be returned to Asset Forfeiture.



Minute Book 42
28 May 2013 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes

Page 6 of 11

With no further questions, Mayor O’Geary stood to commend Chief Sidwell for his tenure and
thanked him for his commitment to Henderson saying he will be missed.

Council asked that $33,100 for outfitting new vehicles with lights, radios, etc. be transferred
from the line item to Asset Forfeiture. Council also removed the $6,200 from Bulletproof Vests
as it is anticipated this cost will be covered by grants. And, an adjustment is to be made for the
$60,000 duplication.

Fire Department

City Manager Griffin then asked Fire Chief Danny Wilkerson to come forward while he
summarized the reasons for the Fire Department’s budget increase requests. The Fire
Department is requesting a frozen fire fighter position be funded and the State payroll tax, career
development and call back time all contribute to the increase. Mr. Griffin said the Fire
Department also requested two new vehicles which are not included in the budget.

Council Member Coffey asked why the budget did not include any of the requested new vehicles
since the Police Chief had just stated that public safety vehicles over 80,000 miles are not
considered in good condition. Chief Wilkerson said he could no longer justify putting dollars
into the suburban and truck but did ask that Council approve $80,000 for new tools and safety
gear.

Council Member Rainey asked about grants and if the Chief had any indication why they had
been unsuccessful in being approved. Chief Wilkerson said he is hopeful the department will
receive a $190,000 grant from FEMA this year for equipment and said if approved there is a 5%
match required. He said although they have applied yearly for grants, no input has been received
as to why they have not been approved.

Council Member Coffey then asked about the callback costs. She asked if this figure would be
reduced with the hiring of a full-time firefighter. Chief Wilkerson anticipates a reduction of
about $25,000 with a full-time firefighter. She then asked about insurance savings.

Chief Wilkerson said there is an ISO Rating which Henderson is currently rated at Class 4 with
the best being Class 1. He mentioned the ratings are based on staffing, hydrants, 2” lines along
with the two existing fire stations which are located too close together as part of the City’s rating.
He also mentioned workers compensation costs which are increasing.

Council Member Peace-Jenkins inquired about the Carbon Monoxide detector program. Chief
Wilkerson said they have partnered with the Lewis family who has provided detectors for
distribution.

Council Member Brown expressed his hope that the department will become successful in
receiving grants in the future.



Minute Book 42
28 May 2013 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes

Page 7 of 11

At this time, City Manager Griffin recapped for Council that these are the two most expensive
departments within the City with 44.2% of the General Fund budget going to fund these
departments while current year property tax only generates 39% of fund revenues.

Council Member Daeke expressed citizen concern regarding those who do not pay their taxes.
Everyone agreed there is no argument with that concern. However, Mr. Griffin said the City
averages a 93.5% tax collection rate, so that’s all that can be budgeted. Mr. Griffin stressed
those tax dollars do not cover the costs relative to these two most important departments within
the City, along with E-911.

Council reduced the Call Back Time allowance by $25,000 if the frozen firefighter position is
funded.

Planning & Community Development

City Manager Griffin said Ms. Erris Dunston directs both the Planning & Community
Development department and the Downtown Development department budgets. Beginning with
Planning & Community Development, he summarized this department by saying this budget is
essentially flat and still has three frozen positions. He reminded Council that a grant had been
approved for the Community Development Enhancement program of $50,000. He said $20,000
of that would go to fund a Community Development director position for the first year. He
apologized to Council and said in his haste to complete the budget in the timeframe Council
desired, he neglected to include the Community Development position which should have been
budgeted at $35,000 to make a full year salary of $55,000. He said to make the grant work, the
$35,000 needs to be added into the FY14 budget.

Council Member Inscoe asked if the Community Development position could be outsourced. Mr.
Griffin said Council previously wished to keep it in-house. Council Member Inscoe expressed
concern that the $20,000 from the grant will leave the FY15 budget short $20,000. City
Manager Griffin said his understanding was to have a CD position that could specifically focus
on the Flint Hill area for the larger revitalization grant. Mr. Inscoe said he did not feel another
full-time position was needed that would need to be funded completely in FY15. Council
Member Daeke agreed saying once you add a position with benefits, you certainly did not want
to lay them off a year or two later. He asked if there is some way to accomplish this goal without
the adding a full-time position. Director Dunston said the position would be funded at $40,000
with $11,000 in benefits.

Council Member Peace-Jenkins asked if the grant was not funded in accordance with the
requirements, would the grant have to be returned. Director Dunston said contrary to belief, the
grant would need to remain in-house.

(Council Member Rainey left the meeting at 8:03 p.m. and returned at 8:09 p.m.)



Minute Book 42
28 May 2013 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes

Page 8 of 11

Council Member Brown asked Director Dunston to elaborate on what her understanding of the
grant is to help him understand. She said when she spoke to the State, she was told the training
piece of the grant needed to be administered either by a non-profit or a local government.
Following a lengthy discussion, Director Dunston agreed to verify the grant restrictions with the
grant provider.

There were no questions regarding the basic operating budget submitted for this department. So,
the conversation moved to the Downtown Development Commission (DDC) budget.

Downtown Development Commission

City Manager Griffin explained the City provides full-time staffing to support the DDC and the
budget request was for $104,900 with the DDC requesting $50,152 for various types of activities
such as new banners, and decorations. Mr. Griffin said the budget recommendation is for the
full-time position with $10,000 as a basic allocation. Last year there was $50,000 set aside for
one-time seed money for the REEF Project, but this cannot be considered as part of the base
budget.

Council Member Coffey asked if the $50,000 for REEF has been removed from the budget. Mr.
Griffin said no; at June 30, 2013, if no agreement has been reached, the $50,000 reverts back to
the General Fund balance and said the dollars can be re-appropriated back if an agreement is
reached and approved by City Council.

Council Member Daeke asked about the Main Street program grants saying with a full-time
director, it does not seem like much is happening and citizens have approached him wondering
why. He said he was expecting to see more energy in the downtown area. Council Members
Coffey and Rainey agreed. Mr. Daeke went on to say the Main Street status is important but he
is unsure what the benefits are.

Council Member Inscoe felt the DDC should be more proactive in finding grant dollars. There
was a discussion that followed with no clear direction.

Director Dunston responded much of the efforts in the department have gone into the REEF
project, bringing the department into compliance, building networks, transitioning the Board.
She also referenced the economic times.

Council Member Brown asked for further information. Director Dunston said the DDC is
designed to market and develop businesses downtown. The DDC is the board for the Main
Street program and to keep the Main Street status, there has to be a full-time position. She said
there has been transition with the DDC and some of the problem is getting volunteers involved in
the program. He also asked what constitutes Downtown and Director Dunston responded
Andrews to Dabney – along Garnett Street over to Zene and Winder to include the REEF
building which is owned by the DDC.



Minute Book 42
28 May 2013 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes

Page 9 of 11

Council Member Inscoe felt there is a direct conflict of interest between the Chamber and the
DDC as both are promoting downtown Henderson.

Council Member Coffey asked for a list of new businesses. Director Dunston listed several new
businesses including Greenways, Snow Cone, Zumba and a new boutique. Council Member
Inscoe asked how these can be classified as the result of the DDC. Director Dunston replied they
are the result of the Main Street Manager and her recruiting. Mayor O’Geary added a new
bakery should be opening soon. Council Member Brown felt six (6) new businesses was a
good number for the downtown area.

Mr. Griffin said last year when this first was discuss Council was asked by the DDC to create a
full-time position to manage the grant as they (the DDC) did not feel they had the staffing to
manage the grant. He said if Council is not happy with the program and do not want to fund,
then the Main Street designation can be surrendered. He also said the City does not have the
dollars to support a downtown program.

Council Member Daeke asked if Vance County contributes to the DDS. Director Dunston
responded they contribute $1,500 to the City’s $10,000. Council Member Rainey asked if
downtown businesses contribute anything to this commission. Director Dunston responded there
are no membership fees and businesses do not contribute.

The discussion continued with no firm decisions. Council requested Mr. Phil Hart, the incoming
DDC Chairman, be invited to meet with Council to discuss the goals of the DDC and Council for
downtown before the budget process is concluded.

Code Compliance

City Manager Griffin said this budget is also flat – meaning no change from FY13. $50,000 is
included for demolitions and Council Member Daeke asked how many structures could be
demolished for that sum. Code Compliance Director Corey Williams said perhaps 10-12.

Council Member Inscoe inquired about the Capital Outlay. Mr. Griffin said it was to replace a
2001 vehicle with 163,000 miles but it was not recommended for funding in the hopes of
replacing it with a retiring police vehicle.

There were no further questions and no adjustments were made to the budget..

IT (Information Technology)

City Manager Griffin said the Engineering Director also serves as the IT person since no IT
position is funded. He said $8,000 of the Capital Outlay is requested to replace the server at City
Hall.



Minute Book 42
28 May 2013 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes

Page 10 of 11

Council Member Rainey asked if replacing the 25 computers was for all departments.
Engineering Director Peter Sokalski responded it was for all the computers except the Police
Department. This item, however, is not funded in the FY14 budget.

The remainder of the request is for NCOL server support. Council Member Daeke asked if bids
had been requested for this support. Mr. Sokalski responded no because NCOL knows the
system and they provide excellent response time. However, he said he would be willing to take
the lengthy time to request bids if Council wished him to do so. There was no direction from
Council to do this.

Public Buildings

Discussion then turned to the Operating costs.

Council Member Inscoe asked how much of the FY13 budget had been spent. Mr. Sokalski said
$68,000 and expressed concern about repairs at the SNB building and old police station. He also
said Public Buildings has been expanded to include the old police station and the SNB building.

There was a brief discussion regarding the condition of the SNB building and how much money
was going into the building. Mr. Sokalski said very little --- only if a window or door needed to
be replaced. Mr. Sokalski said he felt $10,000 could be cut from the budget.

Council Member Inscoe expressed concern that businesses would be discouraged with an 8 cent
tax increase. He said if the City keeps hurting business it will decrease economic development.
Council Member Rainey felt there should be a happy medium between no tax increase and the 8
cent proposed increase.

After further discussion, Council Member Inscoe suggested a budget reduction of $20,000.
There was a consensus of Council to take the $20,000 reduction.

There was no further discussion regarding Public Buildings.

Bennett Perry House

City Manager Griffin said the FY14 is $8,700 for keeping the lights on and basic heating during
the winter. Mr. Griffin went on to say there are no plans to renovate the house or dollars to do so.
He said there were some donations received that were used to replace the oil furnace and
electrical work but soliciting donations is not an on-going project.

There were no questions regarding the Bennett Perry House.

At this time, Council chose to adjourn and return for Budget Session #3 on Thursday, 30 May.

City Manager Griffin wrapped-up the discussion as follows:



Minute Book 42
28 May 2013 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes

Page 11 of 11

 $33,100 from the police department by transferring the radios and equipment for the 5
new vehicles to Asset Forfeiture

 $60,000 error in structured overtime needed to be considered
 $6,200 for bulletproof vests costs absorbed by grant(s)
 $25,000 reducing the fire department call back time if frozen firefighter position funded
 Global reduction in the Public Buildings (Fund 500) budget of $20,000

These changes result in a total reduction of $144,300.

Council Member Inscoe said to throw out the $25,000 for a Code Enforcement vehicle. Mr.
Griffin said the $25,000 was not funded in the budget with hopes Code Enforcement will be able
to use one of the police department vehicles once replaced with a new vehicle.

Before adjourning, Mayor O’Geary asked if there was anything else Council wished to discuss.
There were no questions so Mayor O’Geary asked for a motion to adjourn.

Car Park

 Verify CDBG Enhancement grant position regarding outsourcing
 Phil Hart meet with Council regarding vision for DDC and Downtown

ADJOURNMENT

Council Member Brown moved for adjournment. Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke
and unanimously approved. The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m.

____________________________
James D. O’Geary
Mayor

ATTEST:

_____________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk



Minute Book 42
30 May 2013 Budget Work Session #3 Minutes

Page 1 of 4

City Council Minutes
Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #3 - DRAFT

30 May 2013

PRESENT

Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M.
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Vernon L. Brown and George M. Daye.

ABSENT

Council Members Garry D. Daeke and D. Michael Rainey

STAFF PRESENT

City Manager Ray Griffin, Assistant City Manager, Frank Frazier, City Clerk Esther J.
McCrackin, Finance Director Katherine Brafford, Recreation and Parks Director Alan Gill,
Youth Services Director Donna Stearns, Engineering Director Peter Sokalski, Planning and
Community Development Director Erris Dunston and Human Resources Director Cathy Brown.

CALL TO ORDER

The 30 May 2013 Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #3 was called to order by
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers,
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC.

ROLL CALL

The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.

OPENING REMARKS

Mayor O’Geary welcomed everyone to Work Session #3. He then asked City Manager Griffin
to begin the work session.



Minute Book 42
30 May 2013 Budget Work Session #3 Minutes

Page 2 of 4

Before responding to the Car Park items, City Manager Griffin distributed and reviewed a
General Fund analysis which he compiled following the 2nd work session to assist Council in
understanding what needed to be accomplished to reach their goal of 0% tax increase. Below is
what he explained in the analysis needs to happen for Council to meet their goal:

Revenues
Recommended Revenues $15,731,000
Less Proposed 8.3 cent tax increase ( 739,000)
Less Further Adjustments for hold harmless sales tax, ( 245,500)

Recreation and privilege license revenues)

Goal for 0% tax increase, Zero Fund Balance Use $14,746,500
and Adjustments previous mentioned

Expenditures
Recommended Expenditures $15,731,000
Less goal level revenues (see above) (14,746,500)

Budget Expenditures to be cut to achieve goal $ 984,500
Reductions made by Council during Budget Work ( 144,300)

Session 1 & 2
Less HR Correction to expenditure ( 10,000)

Amount needed to reduce in order to achieve goal $ 830,200

Mr. Griffin also shared that the Vance County Tax Collector contacted Finance Director Kathy
Brafford today saying the taxes due from the Hospital should be received mid-June.

Council Member Inscoe expressed concern about what will happen in FY16 when property
values are reappraised by the County saying he expects tax values to decrease, therefore, less
revenue for the City. He said Council needs to seriously consider how they wish to shrink the
budget and yet maintain services.

Council Member Kearney asked Mr. Griffin if he could project the impact on the Fund Balance.
Mr. Griffin said not at this time because final key revenue source information will not be
received until September.

After a brief discussion, City Manager Griffin said there are several ways Council could direct
staff to reach the target goal. He said they could raise taxes, use Fund Balance monies or
eliminate services/functions or any combination of these options.

Council Member Brown asked if the Manager had created graphs for any of these options. Mr.
Griffin said not at this time. He went on to say Council has not raised taxes since 2009-2010 and



Minute Book 42
30 May 2013 Budget Work Session #3 Minutes

Page 3 of 4

to use Fund Balance monies could create needs throughout the budget year. He reminded
Council that the sanitation fee can be adjusted any time during the year but once the property tax
rate is set, it cannot be changed during the fiscal year.

Council Member Kearney felt reducing the amount of expenditures over the options would be
the best consideration. He suggested $200,000 in cuts, looking at a tax increase and taking the
balance from the Fund Balance.

Council Member Inscoe expressed concern regarding the City Garage expenses and although he
said it could not be done this year, he felt outsourcing might be an option to be considered in
future years. He also expressed concern regarding further reducing the Fund Balance. Mr.
Inscoe suggested the City Manager bring back to Council scenarios for consideration and asked
when the Manager might be able to compile these scenarios. Council Member Brown agreed.

City Manager Griffin said he would like to meet again on Tuesday, June 4th.

It was the consensus of Council Members to meet on 4 June 2013 at 6:00 p.m.

Council Member Coffey said she had reviewed the line items which were requested by Council
Member Inscoe following Budget Work Session #2 and asked for an explanation of the Bad Debt
Fund.

Mr. Griffin explained that all bad debts are located in this fund as opposed to being listed under
separate departments. He said having bad debts located in a central fund makes it easier to track
both for the finance department and the auditors.

Mr. Griffin explained it was the same concept with Worker’s Compensation, which Council
Member Coffey asked about next --- having one central location makes it easier to track. He said
the Human Resources Director had detailed information to track this fund.

Council Member Inscoe asked the City Manager to compile a scenario showing the difference
between a $0.50 sanitation increase and a $1.00 sanitation increase.

Council Member Coffey asked if there was any research available regarding average wants
versus needs in comparable municipalities. Mr. Griffin said he was unaware of any such
research.

Council Member Kearney said after looking at the tax rate information provided to Council at a
previous budget session, he saw many municipalities of similar size with much higher taxes then
Henderson currently has in place. Council Member Coffey said she looked at the same
information and felt most did not have the unemployment problems that exist in Henderson.



Minute Book 42
30 May 2013 Budget Work Session #3 Minutes

Page 4 of 4

There was no further discussion. City Manager Griffin thanked Council for their guidance.

Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was ready to adjourn.

ADJOURNMENT

Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved for adjournment. Motion seconded by Council Member
Inscoe and unanimously approved. The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m.

____________________________
James D. O’Geary
Mayor

ATTEST:

_____________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk



Minute Book 42
4 June 2013 Budget Work Session #4 Minutes

Page 1 of 8

City Council Minutes
Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #4 - DRAFT

4 June 2013

PRESENT

Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M.
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Vernon
L. Brown and George M. Daye.

ABSENT

None.

STAFF PRESENT

City Manager Ray Griffin, Assistant City Manager, Frank Frazier, City Clerk Esther J.
McCrackin, Finance Director Katherine Brafford, Fire Chief Danny Wilkerson, Engineering
Director Peter Sokalski, Recreation and Parks Director Alan Gill, Youth Services Director
Donna Stearns, Fiscal Compliance Officer Edna Vaught and Planning and Community
Development Director Erris Dunston.

CALL TO ORDER

The 4 June 2013 Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #4 was called to order by Mayor
James D. O’Geary at 6:01 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal
Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC.

ROLL CALL

The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.

OPENING REMARKS

Mayor O’Geary welcomed everyone to Work Session #4.



Minute Book 42
4 June 2013 Budget Work Session #4 Minutes

Page 2 of 8

GENERAL DISCUSSION

City Manager Griffin began by reviewing the memo distributed yesterday to Council regarding
the 3-legged plan which he put together at Council’s request to further reduce the tax
recommended increase of $0.83. He said he used $164,300 from the General Fund Balance,
increased property taxes by $0.03 and increased the recommended Sanitation Fee by $1.00,
adding he recommended instituting a new fire inspection fee and increasing the zoning fees. In
doing this he was able to reduce the budget by $503,300. With these cuts, the FY14 Budget
would be approximately $343,700 more than the FY13. He then discussed some specifics of
how he reached this figure by saying although he did not recommend the majority of the cuts,
some were made arbitrarily; some are workable and some may create consequences during the
year such as not replacing the 8-10 year old server at City Hall and some were volunteered by
Department Heads. Recreation and Parks Director Alan Gill eliminated $20,000 in Babe Ruth
travel to help bring that budget back to FY13 levels. Mr. Griffin said dollars for things like new
street lights have been eliminated. Mr. Griffin questioned the value of keeping the Bennett Perry
House when the dollars are not there for maintenance; say nothing about creating the required
museum. He added that daily cleaning service at City Hall has also been scaled back. Mr.
Griffin said he felt very strongly that refreezing the Assistant Finance Director position was not a
good decision but he understood the reduction of approximately $75,000 in salary helps Council
achieve its goal.

Council Member Kearney asked how much the County contributes to the DDC and wanted to
know if changes are made to the DDC budget, how it would affect the $50,000 previously
committed to the REEF project. Mr. Griffin responded $1,500 is contributed by the County. He
added the $50,000 can be appropriated by Council if RED, Inc. and the DDC come to terms---he
said the Golden Leaf organization meets this week and more will be known about the status of
that grant after that meeting. Mr. Kearney then asked about what would happen to events such
as the Christmas parade if the DDC budget is eliminated. Mr. Griffin said the City would have
to look to the Chamber or perhaps Vance County Tourism to see if they would be willing to take-
on this event. Mr. Kearney also asked what the anticipated savings will be in the Police Chief
salary until a new Chief is hired. Mr. Griffin said there might be minor savings.

Council Member Coffey commented that she felt the County should contribute more to the DDC.
She also said she felt the DDC was important with the coming of the new arts center and went on
to ask how many individuals continue to receive funds although they are not currently serving on
boards and commissions. Mr. Griffin responded one: Mr. Dave Stallings, former Planning
Board member, receives an honorarium of $300 a year.

Council Member Rainey brought the discussion back to the DDC. He asked for some positives
accomplished in the department. Mr. Griffin said the DDC staff person has done a good job with
what she has had to work with and clearly stated there is no dissatisfaction with the staff person.

Mr. Rainey then asked why the Recreation Department does not hold more tournaments which
he felt would create dollars for the department and Council Member Coffey asked what it costs



Minute Book 42
4 June 2013 Budget Work Session #4 Minutes

Page 3 of 8

to host a tournament. Mr. Gill responded there are no entry fees for the Babe Ruth tournaments
and the umpires are paid by the host location. He said travel and meal costs can be expensive as
there are usually over 100 participants traveling to the host location which rotates according to
tournament requirements. Mr. Gill also said for regional tournaments, there are usually no costs
involved other than the umpires as participants travel home in the evening. In previous years, the
costs for Babe Ruth travel have exceeded $20,000 and that citizen donations have helped cover
the travel costs. Council Member Inscoe asked for the donation amount and Mr. Gill responded
approximately $4,500 in addition to the $20,000 budgeted.

Council Member Peace-Jenkins turned discussion back to the DDC saying if the DDC is done
away with, it would be counter to the City’s Mission Statement. She also said it would
contribute to the City needing life support. Council Member Coffey said outsiders see the
citizens of Henderson as having no hope.

Mayor O’Geary asked Planning and Community Development Director Erris Dunston to address
Council with the DDC’s accomplishments. Ms. Dunston gave a summary, explaining the time
needed to bring the Commission into State compliance; lack of procedures for events such as the
Christmas parade that have been established and many behind the scenes projects such as
establishing a volunteer program have all been catch up issues Ms. Hester has faced. She said a
lot has been accomplished but they are not “street visible.” Ms. Dunston said the department is
now at the breaking point where the Board can back into the four points the Board is designed to
accomplish. Council Member Kearney asked Ms. Dunston to compile a list of accomplishments
which she did during the meeting and submitted to Council prior to the end of this meeting. A
copy of this memo is incorporated by reference and hereby made part of these minutes. Mayor
O’Geary commented that he sees work being completed daily.

Council Member Kearney said citizens take pride in things like the Babe Ruth championships
and Christmas decorations.

Council Member Rainey asked if the Merchants Association still existed. Ms. Dunston
responded no, but re-establishment could certainly be considered.

Council Member Brown said the City of Kinston considers its Recreation program their meat
and potatoes as he put it, yet Council is discussing tonight removing dollars from the budget for
trophies. He agreed with Mr. Kearney’s comment earlier that there should be some dollars
available from the Police Chief’s salary and he also felt the Main Street (DDC) position was
important with the coming of the arts center.

Council Member Daeke said he was not happy about any of the changes but recognized hard
decisions needed to be made.

Council Member Coffey said she thought the City should operate like any other business and be
held accountable. She asked if a Resolution could be passed regarding the tax collection policy.
Ms. Coffey said it takes a lot to play catch up. She said both the Tax Collector and the Main



Minute Book 42
4 June 2013 Budget Work Session #4 Minutes

Page 4 of 8

Street Manager have done their best. She said the City needs to hold the County accountable and
gave kudos to the Water Department for bad debt collection. She said raising taxes is not
something she wants to do; however, raising the taxes 1 or 2 cents is better than waiting until
three or four years down the road when taxes have to be raised a significant amount. She said
small steps need to be taken.

Mr. Griffin said he has spoken to the County several times about the policy. He said by law,
taxes have to written off every ten years in January or February but said he would certainly put
together a resolution for consideration at the next regular Council meeting. He also said he
suggested hiring an attorney to assist in catching up the backlog of taxes. He suggested the City
liaison speak with the County liaison as this might lead to changes in the inter-governmental
agreement.

Mayor O’Geary then asked for a consensus of Council regarding its desire to send a Resolution
to the County regarding the tax collection policy. The consensus was unanimous with all
Council Members present to send a Resolution.

Council Member Rainey asked how much income has been lost from privilege licenses and what
was budgeted in FY13. Mr. Griffin said $332,497 was billed for FY13 collections. $129,000
was adjusted because of business closures. He said two internet cafés have closed. Mr. Rainey
also asked if the hospital tax was included in the FY14 budget figures. Mr. Griffin said yes. He
reminded Council that the Hospital personal property appeal, currently under consideration in
Raleigh, will not be resolved until after the budget process is completed.

Mr. Griffin said revenues are estimated on the conservative side. Mr. Rainey then made a
statement saying the small amount of saving from the Police Chief position is only a bandaid
because when a Chief is hired the bandaid no longer exists.

Mr. Griffin agreed and said the position will need to be reclassified to hire the best candidate for
the job. He also said some level of search assistance will be needed to find the best candidate.

Council Member Daeke asked what was budgeted for property taxes for the Hospital. Mr.
Griffin said he budgeted the same as FY13. Council Member Inscoe added with Raleigh making
the appeal decision regarding the Hospital personal tax, and they are the largest tax payer in
Henderson, there is a good change the valuation will go down.

Council Member Inscoe went on to say the reclassification of the police chief will further reduce
the Fund Balance. Mr. Griffin stated the Police Chief position needs to be competitive and said
right now the expense is covered.

Council Member Coffey said she thought there were a lot of people looking for jobs and felt
there was no need to raise the Police Chief salary because, in her opinion, there are a lot of police
chiefs and retired police chiefs looking for work that are qualified. She stated she understands
the police department and the qualifications needed, and added there are a lot of people that



Minute Book 42
4 June 2013 Budget Work Session #4 Minutes

Page 5 of 8

should be looked at. Mr. Griffin said he has experience of hiring directors to which Ms. Coffey
said those are positions dealing with figures not people. Mr. Griffin said whether its law
enforcement, finance or general administration, it’s dealing with highly trained, professionals
and continued saying the current salary range is not competitive for this area or population size.
He said the current salary range is competitive for much smaller municipalities. He said he has
already received applications for the position. His question is what level of professional should
fill the position. Ms. Coffey said it needs to be open minded to give people a chance to be
interested in the community.

Council Member Brown said the salary for the Police Chief needs to be competitive because
Henderson is a “rough/tough town” and said the City needs to “get it right”. He said the next
Police Chief has to be the “right fit.”

Council Member Daye asked about qualified people in-house for the Police Chief position
saying there might be individuals already on the force who can continue with what has already
been instituted. Mr. Griffin responded the recruiting process is to find the best person for the
position, whether in-house or outside.

Council Member Daeke asked how much Fund Balance was used in the $503,000 dollar
decrease. Mr. Griffin said $164,300. Mr. Daeke said the discussion has been a good one and
but even with all the cuts and use of the Fund Balance, Council needs to regroup and decide what
to do about the budget.

Council Member Inscoe said the Fund Balance cannot continue to be used to balance the budget
and again referenced 2016 when properties will be re-evaluated. He said he cannot predict the
future but he strongly feels the valuations will be less which will create a very serious problem in
2016.

Council Member Kearney felt the Manager and staff did their part in reducing the budget and felt
citizens would accept a $0.04 tax increase to keep from using Fund Balance monies. He added
he did not feel the increase should be used to fill staff positions, such as reinstating the Assistant
Finance Director.

Council Member Peace-Jenkins asked how much a $0.01 tax increase would garner. Mr. Griffin
said approximately $89,000.

Council Member Daye said there would be some complaints about a tax increase but said if the
City expects to grow, it needs to be done.

Council Member Inscoe said increased taxes are a deterrent to economic development. He
expressed how an increase will affect those on fixed incomes.

Council Member Rainey said if the City is to function like a business and maintain services it
needs to increase revenue while decreasing expenses and reminded everyone that the taxes do



Minute Book 42
4 June 2013 Budget Work Session #4 Minutes

Page 6 of 8

not cover services. He also said many communities provide exemptions and/or incentives to new
businesses. Mr. Rainey, like all the Council members, does not like the idea of a tax increase but
it seems inevitable. He added not all citizens pay property taxes and wondered what percent of
residents are subject to property taxes.

Council Member Coffey said everyone expects top of the line service but people need to
remember things are not free and people need to change their mindset. She said citizens need to
know that Council is honestly trying to meet needs in a proactive manner.

Council Member Rainey reminded everyone that property taxes are only paid by property
owners; not all the citizens and he wondered out loud what percent of citizens are actually
property owners. Council Member Inscoe added personal property tax is added for businesses.

Mayor O’Geary now called for a consensus.

Council Member Daeke suggested starting with the highest tax increase Council will consider
and work from that point. Council Member Peace-Jenkins suggested starting with $0.04 cent
increase. City Manager Griffin said $0.03 is already included in the table so an additional $0.01
cent will add $89,000 to reduce the Fund Balance or to reduce some of the cuts or both.

Council Member Kearney said the $89,000 would restore the DDC and the $20,000 cut from the
Recreation Budget and have some left over to reduce the Fund Balance appropriation.

Council Member Daeke asked about the Assistant Finance Director position. Mr. Griffin said
often unfilled positions are frozen without consideration to their value. He said finance is more
than must pushing numbers. It provides financial forecasting, overseeing the budget and
managing the public money which is the highest priority. He said he is thankful there has been
no wrongdoing but there are issues in keeping up because of lack of staffing. Mr. Griffin said
expressed concern that if anything were to happen to the Finance Director, there is no one to take
over and in keeping with his beginning metaphor, said a filled Assistant Finance Director
position provides a 4-legged stool in the department.

Council Member Rainey said if Council votes for an increase, how Council Members should
answer citizens. Mr. Griffin said having a fully staffed fire department is an important expense;
the revenue picture has changed and revenue is not growing. The alternative is to stop providing
services. He reminded everyone that when the budget process began, the Police, Fire and E-911
budget consumed 44% of the General Fund and hypothetically asked if Council/citizens want to
close a fire station. He said all three departments do a fine job. He said many other departments
are flatline and at some point something needs to happen.

Council Member Inscoe said the City has continued doing the same things as in years past yet
Henderson has basically lost its manufacturing base and said perhaps it is time to sit down with
the County again and look at possibilities such as combining fire departments, planning



Minute Book 42
4 June 2013 Budget Work Session #4 Minutes

Page 7 of 8

departments, etc. He feels there are more efficient ways to function and without revenue the City
cannot continue at its current scale.

Council Member Kearney said in response to Manager’s plea for filling the Assistant Finance
Director position, he did not think citizens would approve a tax increase to fill vacant positions.

Council Member Coffey then asked the Manager what Council needed to do to move forward.
She said no one wanted to do the obvious. Mr. Griffin responded guidance is needed and
summarized what he has heard so far is that Council would like to restore the DDC and put
$20,000 back into Recreation which totals $73,400 --- leave the garbage fee at $1.50 increase
and add a penny to the tax increase making it $0.04.

Mayor O’Geary called for a consensus of Council with the results as follows: Council Members
Kearney and Peace-Jenkins in favor of the $0.04 tax increase and Council Members Coffey,
Inscoe, Rainey, Daeke, Brown and Daye against the increase.

After a brief discussion, City Manager Griffin asked Mayor O’Geary to request a consensus on
the $0.03 tax increase.

Before the consensus, Council Member Rainey asked for verification that the $0.04 cent increase
would add both the DDC and $20,000 Recreation cut back into the budget. The response was
this is correct.

Mayor O’Geary then asked for a consensus of the $0.03 tax increase. Rather than responding to
the consensus request, Council began more discussion which Council Member Daeke brought to
a head by proposing a decision be postponed until Council hears from the public during the
Public Hearing on 10 June. After a brief discussion, summarized his thoughts by saying he
proposed a $0.03 tax increase, keeping the cuts as presented on the attached Budget Review
Adjustments by Council table and to take this to the public on 10 June.

Mayor O’Geary called for a consensus on Council Member Daeke’s proposal and the results are
as follows: Council Members Kearney, Coffey, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke and Daye were
all in agreement. Council Members Inscoe and Brown were not in agreement. The consensus
was 6-2 to use the Manager’s suggestions as a draft consensus budget.

City Manager Griffin asked if Council wished to cancel the Budget Work Session scheduled for
6 June. The consensus was to cancel the Work Session. Mr. Griffin then asked if Council
wanted to keep the Budget Works Sessions for 11 June and 13 June and the consensus was to
meet on both nights to finalize the budget.

Mayor O’Geary then asked if Council was prepared to adjourn.



Minute Book 42
4 June 2013 Budget Work Session #4 Minutes

Page 8 of 8

ADJOURNMENT

Council Member Coffey moved for adjournment. Motion seconded by Council Member
Kearney and unanimously approved. The meeting adjourned at 7:58 p.m.

____________________________
James D. O’Geary
Mayor

ATTEST:

_____________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk









CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 1 of 5

_______________________________________

6 June 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council

FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager

RE: CAF: 13-71
Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-32, Amending the Zoning Map to
Change Vance County Tax Map 0221, Block 04, Lot 002 from R20 (Low Density
Residential) and R15 (Moderate to Low Density Residential) Zoning Districts to RA
(Residential and Agricultural) Zoning District Located in the ETJ off Brodie Road
5.00 +/- Acres.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:

 KSO 3: Revise and align land use and sign ordinance

Recommendation:

 Approval of Ordinance 13-32, Amending the Zoning Map to Change Vance County Tax
Map 0221, Block 04, Lot 002 from R20 (Low Density Residential) and R15 (Moderate to
Low Density Residential) Zoning Districts to RA (Residential and Agricultural) Zoning
District Located in the ETJ off Brodie Road 5.00 +/- Acres.

Executive Summary:

This rezoning request came from Vance County. This area is located in the ETJ of the City off Brodie
Road. The property is currently zoned R20 Low Density Residential and R15 Moderate to Low Density
Residential. This ordinance will change the zoning to (RA) Residential Agricultural, a lower density
residential zoning district that allows some agricultural uses. The RA is classified as non-urban
residential and agricultural. One of the uses of the RA District is kennels, which is a permitted use. This
rezoning petition has been reviewed and was approved by the Planning Board May 1, 2013 with a
unanimous board vote.

Enclosures:
1. Ordinance 13-32
2. Planning Board Minutes
3. Aerial Map

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430.5701

Agenda Item: _________

Council Meeting: 10 June 13 Reg Meeting



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 2 of 5

ORDINANCE 13—32

After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after a duly advertised public
hearing on the same, Council Member ____________ introduced the following Ordinance which
was seconded by Council Member __________ and read:

AN ORDINANCE REZONING A 5.00 +/- TRACT LOCATED OFF BRODIE ROAD FROM
R20 (LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL) & R15 (MODERATE TO LOW DENSITY

RESIDENTIAL) ZONING DISTRICTS TO RA (RESIDENTIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
USE) ZONING DISTRICT.

The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain:

Section 1: That the official zoning map of the City of Henderson (incorporated by
reference in City Code) is hereby amended by rezoning 5.00 acres, more or less, off Brodie Road
(being Vance County Tax Map 0221, Block 04, Lot 002) from R20 & R15 to RA.

Section 2. The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the
date of its passage.

The foregoing Ordinance 13-33, upon motion of Council Member ____________ and
seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____
day of _______________, 2013: YES: . NO: . ABSTAIN: . ABSENT: .

____________________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

Approved to Legal Form:

________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney

Reference: Minute Book 42, p. **.



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 3 of 5

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
CITY OF HENDERSON

I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-33, An
Ordinance Rezoning a 5.00+/- tract located off Brodie Road from R20 & R15 to RA Zoning
District, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ** ** 20** (See Minute
Book 4*, p. **.). This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **.

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of *** 2013.



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 4 of 5

City of Henderson
Planning and Community Development Department

Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue / Henderson, NC 27536-1434
Phone: (252) 430-5723 FAX: (252) 492-7935

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE May 6, 2013
PLANNING BOARD MEETING

Public Hearing: Recommendation to rezone property from R20 (Low Density Residential)
& R15 (Moderate to Low Density Residential) Zoning Districts to RA (Residential and
Agricultural Use) Zoning Districts located off Brodie Road, 5.00+/- acres, (Vance County
Tax Map 0221, Block 04, Lot 002), ETJ

Item was introduced by Zoning Administrator Sherry Moss. Moss reviewed items of the agenda
packet. Vance County Planning Director Jordan McMillan and Vance County Attorney Jonathan
Care were present to speak on behalf of public hearing. Care requested the board to revise the
zoning of the five acre tract. He added the tract is located adjacent ten acre tract is currently
owned by the state. McMillan stated this approval does not only allow the combination of the
proposed animal shelter in the future, but also creates situation where the zoning of the property
would actually match the current state of the property, as well as the City’s Comprehensive Plan.
McMillan pointed out that the five acre tract was divided from a tract that was nearly 300 acres
that still remains as 300 acres, on the opposite site of Brodie Road that is currently enforced land,
agricultural use, which suits the definition of the RA district that they’re seeking to rezone to.
McMillan gave three justifications for the rezoning; the effects of the rezoning, in relation to the
city’s comprehensive plan, and the character of the surrounding area. McMillan stated the
rezoning reduces the density of the five acre parcel. It also increases the setbacks; which require
building further off the road. The rezoning would increase frontage requirements; whenever it is
rezone to the RA district. McMillan stated he sees a natural progression moving out from the
urban center of the city of the R6 out to the R15 to the R20, and out to the RA. McMillan
addressed the board if there are any impactful developments, they would require a special use
permit. He stated that is not their intention. They are proposing an animal shelter. McMillan
addressed the proposed uses as it relates to the comprehensive plan. He stated the animal shelter
will be the third public use in this area. This use will be in the institutional and public land use
category. This will be a suitable fit to the area and compliant to the city’s comprehensive plan.
There were no oppositions of the public hearing. The public hearing was closed.

Motioned by Board Member Jimmie Ayscue to approve the request to rezone property from R20
and R15 to RA; Second by Marguerite Anduze; following an unanimous vote of 6-0.



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 5 of 5



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 1 of 5

_______________________________________

6 June 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council

FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager

RE: CAF: 13-72
Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-33, Amending the Zoning Map to Change
Vance County Tax Map 0012, Block 01, Lot 027 from I2 (Industrial Non-Park)
District to B2 (Highway Commercial) Zoning District Located in the City at 903 S.
Beckford Drive, 0.84 +/- acres

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:

 KSO 3: Revise and align land use and sign ordinance

Recommendation:

 Approval of Ordinance13-32, Amending the Zoning Map to Change Vance County Tax
Map 0012, Block 01, Lot 027 from I2 (Industrial Non-Park) District to B2 (Highway
Commercial) Zoning District Located in the City at 903 S. Beckford Drive, 0.84 +/-
acres.

Executive Summary:

A rezoning request was received from CA Moloir, LLC for the property located on the corner of Dabney
Dr. and S. Beckford Dr. --- better known as Blockbuster Video. The property is currently zoned I2
Industrial Non-Park. The change to B2 Highway Commercial provides for more commercial business
opportunities, smaller lot area, and reduced building setbacks. This zoning classification is in
conformance with the City’s Land Use Plan. This rezoning petition was reviewed and approved by the
Planning Board May 1, 2013 with a unanimous board vote.

Enclosures:
1. Ordinance 13-33
2. Planning Board Minutes
3. Aerial Map

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430.5701

Agenda Item: _________

Council Meeting: 10 June 2013



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 2 of 5

ORDINANCE 13— 33

After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after a duly advertised public
hearing on the same, Council Member ___________________________ introduced the
following Ordinance which was seconded by Council Member ______________________ and
read:

AN ORDINANCE REZONING A 0.84 +/- TRACT LOCATED AT 903 SOUTH BECKFORD
DRIVE FROM I2 (INDUSTRIAL NON-PARK DISTRICT) TO B2 (HIGHWAY

COMMERCIAL) ZONING DISTRICT.

The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain:

Section 1: That the official zoning map of the City of Henderson (incorporated by
reference in City Code) is hereby amended by rezoning 0.84 acres, more or less, located at 903
S. Beckford Drive (being Vance County Tax Map 0012, Block 01, Lot 027) from I2 to B4.

Section 2. The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the
date of its passage.

The foregoing Ordinance 13-33 , upon motion of Council member ____________ and
seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____
day of _______________, 2013: YES: . NO: . ABSTAIN: . ABSENT: .

____________________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

Approved to Legal Form:

________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney

Reference: Minute Book 4**, p. **.

_______________________________________



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 3 of 5

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
CITY OF HENDERSON

I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13—**, An
Ordinance Rezoning a 0.84+/- tract located at 903 S. Beckford Drive from I2 to B2 Zoning
District, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ** ** 20** (See Minute
Book 4*, p. **.). This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **.

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of *** 2013.

_________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk
City of Henderson, North Carolina



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 4 of 5

City of Henderson
Planning and Community Development Department

Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue / Henderson, NC 27536-1434
Phone: (252) 430-5723 FAX: (252) 492-7935

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE May 6, 2013
PLANNING BOARD MEETING

Public Hearing: Recommendation to rezone property from I2 (Industrial Non-Park)
District to B2 (Highway Commercial) Zoning District located at 903 S. Beckford Drive,
0.84+/- acres, (Vance County Tax Map 0012, Block 01, Lot 027), CITY

Item was introduced by Zoning Administrator Sherry Moss. Moss reviewed items of the agenda
packet. Chairman Mike Rainey questioned how the property became I2. Moss replied everything
on file showed I2. Chairman Rainey questioned the setbacks of the I2. Moss replied with the
setback requirements of the I2 zoning district. The board and staff briefly discussed the
surrounding zoning districts in the area. Austin Williams-Crosland Southeast (2805 Wintersong
Road, Raleigh, NC) was present to speak on behalf of public hearing. Williams stated he does
have history of the property previously, however his group is real estate investment development
company. They’re under contract to buy a portfolio of 27 Blockbuster stores. They’re looking to
re-tenant these buildings. They’re also under-contract to purchase this property. Williams added
once they execute a contract with Blockbuster to buy this and other stores, they initiated a
number of due diligence exercises that included environmental title searches, surveys, etc.
Williams added the intent is to be able to buy the property and the others they’re buying, having
conforming zoning. In this case, B2 (Highway Commercial) has been requested. Williams added
not just for future uses, but the current use. Williams stated the company is buying them because
Blockbuster is closing stores across the country and they see opportunities for higher and better
uses that will serve the community. Williams stated his company consider themselves as a Class
“A” developer. Williams added they’re intent is to be a long term landlord and provide class “A”
retail service. There were no oppositions of the public hearing. The public hearing was closed.

Motioned by Board Member Horace Bullock to approve the request to rezone property from I2
to B2; Second by Marguerite Anduze; following an unanimous vote of 6-0.



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 5 of 5



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 1 of 4

_______________________________________

6 June 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council

FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager

RE: CAF: 13-73
Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-34, Amending the Table of Permitted Uses –
Section 310 A.14.11 – Gas Sales of the Zoning Ordinance to Include Oil Changes,
Tire Repair and Inspections as a Permitted Use in the I2 (Industrial Non-Park), B2
(Highway Commercial, B2A (Highway Commercial Along the Interstate) and B4
(Neighborhood Business) Zoning Districts and by Special Use Permit in the B1
(Central Business) District

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:

 KSO 3: Revise and align land use and sign ordinance

Recommendation:

 Approval of Ordinance 13-34, Amending the Table of Permitted Uses – Section 310 A.14.11 –
Gas Sales of the Zoning Ordinance to Include Oil Changes, Tire Repair and Inspections as a
Permitted Use in the I2 (Industrial Non-Park), B2 (Highway Commercial, B2A (Highway
Commercial Along the Interstate) and B4 (Neighborhood Business) Zoning Districts and by
Special Use Permit in the B1 (Central Business) District.

Executive Summary:

This is a petition from City Staff to include oil changes, tire repairs, and inspections as a part of Gas Sales
uses. The staff identified these vehicle maintenance uses are becoming a part of Gas Sales for many
businesses of this type. This amendment would allow these uses to be permitted by right in I2, B2, B2A,
and B4. A special use permit would be required in the B1 district downtown. This amendment was
reviewed and approved by the Planning Board on May 1, 2013 with a unanimous vote.

Enclosures:
1. Ordinance 13-34
2. Planning Board Minutes

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430.5701

Agenda Item: _________

Council Meeting: 10 June 13 Reg Meeting



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 2 of 4

ORDINANCE 13—34

After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after a duly advertised public
hearing on the same, Council Member ___________ introduced the following Ordinance which
was seconded by Council Member ___________ and read:

“AN ORDINANCE WITH AN AMENDMENT TO SECTION 310A.14.11 OF THE ZONING
ORDINANCE PERMITTING GAS SALES, OIL CHANGES, TIRE REPAIR, AND
INSPECTIONS IN THE I2 (INDUSTRIAL NON-PARK), B1 (RETAIL/CENTRAL

BUSINESS), B2 (HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL), B2A(HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL “A”),
AND B4 (NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL) ZONING DISTRICTS”

The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain:

Section 1. That the Zoning Code (incorporated by reference in the City Code) be amended as
follows:

“Section 310A.14.11 be amended to permit gas sales, oil changes, tire repair, and
inspections in the I2, B2, B2A, and B4 as a matter by right and in the B1 by a special use
permit.”

Section 2. The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its
passage.

The foregoing Ordinance 13-34 , upon motion of Council member ____________ and
seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____
day of _______________, 2013: YES: . NO: . ABSTAIN: . ABSENT: .

____________________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

Approved to Legal Form:

________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney

Reference: Minute Book 4**, p. **.

_______________________________________



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 3 of 4

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
CITY OF HENDERSON

I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13—**, An
Ordinance with an amendment to section 310A.14.11 of the zoning ordinance, permitting gas
sales, oil changes, tire repair, and inspections in the I2, B1, B2, B2A, and B4 zoning districts,
adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ** ** 20** (See Minute Book 4*,
p. **.). This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **.

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of *** 20**.

_________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk
City of Henderson, North Carolina



CAF 13-71: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing
Page 4 of 4

City of Henderson
Planning and Community Development Department

Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue / Henderson, NC 27536-1434
Phone: (252) 430-5723 FAX: (252) 492-7935

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE May 6, 2013
PLANNING BOARD MEETING

Public Hearing: Recommendation to amend the Table of Permitted Uses-Section
310A.14.11-Gas Sales of the zoning ordinance

Item was introduced by Zoning Administrator Sherry Moss. Moss reviewed items of the agenda
packet. Moss briefly addressed the board about the proposed amendment, stating this will be for
the business that are performing minor repair and/or services and not auto repair, such as
changing engines, etc. Some services include oil changes, tire repair, and inspections. Moss
stated that City Attorney John Zollicoffer reviewed this item and suggested that it falls in with
section 14.11 of the table of permitted use allowed as a matter by right in the B2, B2A, and B4
and by special use permit in the B1 zoning district. City Attorney John Zollicoffer was present to
speak on public hearing. City Attorney Zollicoffer addressed the board that this is to have the
facilities that aren’t in the intensive auto repair business into the service station category. City
Attorney Zollicoffer and the board discussed the concern of overnight storage. There were no
oppositions of the public hearing. The public hearing was closed.

Motioned by Board Member Phil Walters to approve the recommendation as written (Section
310A.14.11); Second by Board Member Jimmie Ayscue; following an unanimous vote of 6-0.



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 1 of 46

________________________________________
6 June 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager
RE: CAF: 13-63 Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-45, Accepting the CDBG

Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant; and 2) Ordinance 13-30, FY 13 BA #
38 Establishing the Budget for Above Mentioned Grant in the Amount of $50,000.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Council Goals Addressed By This Item:

 KSO 4- To improve condition of the housing stock.
 KSO 8- To provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and capital outlay necessary to

meet the needs of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory agencies.

Recommendation:

 Approval of 1) Resolution 13-45, Accepting the CDBG Talent Enhancement Capacity
Building Grant; and 2) Ordinance 13-30, FY 13 BA # 38 Establishing the Budget for Above
Mentioned Grant in the Amount of $50,000.

Executive Summary

On 26 November 2012 Council approved the submission of an application for a CDBG Talent
Enhancement Grant in the amount of $50,000 via Resolution 12-A-48. On 7 May 2013, the City
received notification that the application had been approved and on 14 May 2013 the Grant
Agreement and Funding Approval documents arrived for proper processing. The eligible
activities for this grant are salaries, training and travel for new or existing staff, administration of
grant up to 10% of the total grant and planning costs. These funds would enable the City to
prepare for the previously discussed Flint Hill Neighborhood Project.

During the period of grant application, Council’s consensus was to keep the program in-house
and to un-freeze the community development manager position. Grant funds would assist in this
effort for year one, after which the position would be fully funded by the City.

As has been discussed during current budget work sessions, funding is not provided in the FY14
Recommended Budget for the new position. Consensus has not yet been achieved on how this

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430.5701

Agenda Item: _____________

Council Meeting: 10 June 13 Reg. Meeting



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 2 of 46

matter will be resolved. Options discussed to-date have been to find funding of about $30,000 to
round-out the grant for the new position or to reconsider contracting with the COG for the
planning activities associated with the Flint Hill Neighborhood program. As part of due-
diligence in reviewing the options, Ms. Dunston and I have spoken with State officials. It has
become clear the State will not allow the City to contract with the COG for the planning services.
The only service for which the City could contract with the COG is administration of the grant.

In speaking with Mr. Charlie Thompson, the State’s administrator for the grant program, I
learned the City could use the money to supplant an existing employee’s salary for the first year,
pay for the training and expenses of travel to/from Greeneville, etc. (already known) as well as
expenses associated with developing the plan for the neighborhood. The City would develop the
plan in-house as we cannot contract out that service with the COG. (See revised grant budget
proposal below)

Current Proposed

Personnel

(a) Supplemental for existing staff 15,000$ 25,000$

(b)New Position 20,000 -

Training

(a) Existing Staff 3,500 10,000

(b) New Staff - -

Travel

(a)Supplemental for Existing Staff 3,000 5,000

(b) New Position - -

Other

Planning (with Restriction) 3,500 5,000

Grant Administration (10%) 5,000 5,000

Total: 50,000$ 50,000$

Grant Project Budget
Line Item Detail

Planning and Community Development Director Dunston will be the one taking the training and
developing the plan. Given the change in scope of the City’s current situation with the grant vis-
à-vis its intent in November 2012, approval of the grant should be conditioned on the State
amending the grant offer to provide for in-house use of the funds with existing staff and not
unfreezing the community development position, thus causing the City to have to allocate more
funds in the FY14 Budget. Ms. Dunston advises Mr. Thompson has provided verbal approval of
the proposed grant budget amendment. Ordinance 13-10 reflects the proposed ordinance
amendment previously mentioned. Since the city can use funding to supplement Ms. Dunston’s
salary, it is recommended such dollars be used to help fund Flint Hill planning activities and
expenses. Once FY15 budget is developed, the City would not have a budgetary gap to fill mid-
year if this course of action is taken.



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 3 of 46

The City must execute and return the agreement to the State within 45 days of 13 May 2013.

 All funds must be obligated and expended within 15 months, or 13 August 2014.
 All closeout documents must be submitted to the State by 13 November 2014.

Enclosure:
1. Resolution 13-45
2. Ordinance 13-30
3. Resolution 12-A-48
4. Approval Letter from NCDOC



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 4 of 46

RESOLUTION 13-45

ACCEPTING A CDBG TALENT ENHANCEMENT
CAPACITY BUILDING GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in
January 2013, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO)
and Goals and 12 Core Values; and

WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one KSO as follows: KSO 4 - To Improve Condition of
the Housing Stock; and

WHEREAS, Council approved the submission of an application for a CDBG Capacity Grant on
26 November 2012; and

WHEREAS, the City received approval of said application for a CDBG Talent Enhancement
Capacity Grant in the amount of $50,000, being more fully articulated in Attachment A
to this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, Council wishes to accept the grant pursuant to an amendment to the project budget,
said amendment being more fully articulated in Attachment B to this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, Council certifies the City will meet all federal regulatory and statutory
requirements of the State of North Carolina Community Development Block Grant
Program.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT
IT DOES HEREBY authorize the acceptance of $50,000 Grant from the North Carolina
Department of Commerce for the Community Development Block Grant Talent
Enhancement Capacity Building category to benefit the City of Henderson pursuant to
grant project budget amendment as more fully articulates in Attachment B, and
authorizes the Mayor to execute documents relating to said grant.

The foregoing Resolution 13-45, introduced by Councilmember ****** and seconded by
Councilmember ****** on this the **** day of **** 2013, and having been submitted to a roll
call vote, was approved by the following votes: Ayes: Nays:

__________________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:
_______________________________
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk
Approved to Legal Form:
________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney

Reference Minute Book 42, pg **; CAF 13-63



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 5 of 46

Attachment A
Resolution 13-45



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 6 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 7 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 8 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 9 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 10 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 11 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 12 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 13 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 14 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 15 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 16 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 17 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 18 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 19 of 46



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 20 of 46

CAF 13-63
Attachment #2



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 21 of 46

Resolution 13-45
Attachment B



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 22 of 46

O R D I N A N C E 13-30

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2012 – 2013 BUDGET
BUDGET AMENDMENT #38 AMENDING FUND 55: GRANTS FUND

Establishing the CDBG Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant Project Budget

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 14 June 2012, adopted the
FY 12-13 Operating Budget; and

WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Grants Projects Fund for active grant projects.
said fund referred to as 55: Grants Projects Fund; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual
operating and grants projects fund from time-to-time, said amendment being incorporated
into this Ordinance; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that
the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council and the NC Department of
Commerce:

Approved Current

Department Line Item Code 1 Jul 12 Budget Amendment Revised

CDBG Talent Enhancement

Capacity Building Grant Dept of Commerce CA Grant 55-303-458146 -$ -$ 50,000$ 50,000$

-$ -$ -$ -$

Total -$ -$ 50,000$ 50,000$

50,000$
Approved Current

Department Line Item Code 1 Jul 12 Budget Amendment Revised

CDBG Talent Enhancement

Capacity Building Grant Salaries & Wages 55-303-500200 -$ -$ 25,000$ 25,000$
Travel 55-303-501400 -$ -$ 5,000$ 5,000$

Training 55-303-501402 -$ -$ 10,000$ 10,000$
Planning 55-303-510100 -$ -$ 5,000$ 5,000$

Grant Administration 55-303-510200 -$ -$ 5,000$ 5,000$

Total -$ -$ 50,000$ 50,000$

50,000$
Variance -$

Reference: Notes:

CAF 13-63; Resolution 13-45; Ordinance 13-30; BA #38

This serves to establish the project budget for the CDBG Talent Enhancement

Capacity Building Grant in the amount of $50,000. Council approved submission of

an application for this grant at its meeting on November 26, 2012.

Ordinance 13-30

FUNDS: 55: Grants Fund
FY12-13 Budget Amendment # 38

Establishing the Grant Budget

55: Grants Fund Revenues

55: Grants Fund Expenditures



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 23 of 46

The foregoing Ordinance 13-30 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and
was *** on this the 10 day of June 2013: YES: ***. NO: **. ABSTAIN: **. ABSENT: **.

___________________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

Reference: Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 13-63

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
CITY OF HENDERSON

I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-30 adopted by the
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 10 June 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***.

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of June 2013.

_________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk
City of Henderson, North Carolina

Reviewed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________________
Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director

Reviewed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________________
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 24 of 46

RESOLUTION 12-A-48

APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR A 2012
TALENT ENHANCEMENT CAPACITY BUILDING GRANT

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in
January 2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO)
and Goals and 12 Core Values; and

WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one KSO as follows: KSO 4 - To Improve Condition of
the Housing Stock; and

WHEREAS, Council recognizes the need to improve the economic viability and community
development of the City of Henderson; and

WHEREAS, Council wishes to pursue a formal application for a Talent Enhancement Capacity
Grant in the amount of $50,000, being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this
Resolution, to benefit the City of Henderson; and

WHEREAS, Council certifies the City will meet all federal regulatory and statutory
requirements of the State of North Carolina Community Development Block Grant
Program.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT
IT DOES HEREBY authorize the submission of a formal application to the North
Carolina Department of Commerce for the Community Development Block Grant Talent
Enhancement Capacity Building category to benefit the City of Henderson this the 26th

day of November 2012.

______________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________________
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk

Approved as to Legal Form

_______________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney

Reference: Minute Book 42, p. 651; CAF 12-A-76



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 25 of 46

TECBG APPLICATION CHECKLIST

When submitting an application, use the following checklist as a table of contents. Make sure all
of the required items are included. If any one of the required items is not included, the
application will not meet threshold nor be approved for funding.

Application Submission Requirements and Process Adherence
□ Applicant must be an eligible non-entitlement general unit of local government.
□ Applicant must submit two (2) complete originals of the application.
□ Applications must be submitted to CI in a three-ring binder organized with tabs.
□ Application Summary Form and all forms requiring official signatures must appear in
both applications, complete, and have the original signature of the chief elected official or other
documented authorized certifying officer.
□ Applications must be physically received at CI by 5:00 p.m. November 30, 2012.
□ Applicant’s CDBG TECBG funding request must not exceed $50,000.
□ Neither applicant nor any of its critical partners can appear on the Federal or State
Suspension of Funds List/Debarment List.
Required Attachments

ITEM TAB LOCATION
DOCUMENTATION OF CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION (CCR)
□  INITIAL    □ ANNUAL UPDATE 

APPLICATION SUMMARY SIGNED BY THE CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIAL (2 originals-one
per application.)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST FORM-CHECKLIST
FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS:
□ A. FEDERAL CERTIFICATIONS
□ B. DISCLOSURE REPORT FOR APPLICANTS REQUESTING $200,000 OR MORE.
(NOTE: Not required for applicants requesting less than $200,000 in CDBG funds and not using
other Federal assistance.)

STATE CDBG REQUIREMENTS:
□ A. REGULATIONS SIGNED AND DATED BY AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL
□ B. DISCLOSURE OF CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLAINTS/LAWSUITS SIGNED AND
DATED BY CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIAL

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

EVIDENCE OF THE ONE REQUIRED PUBLIC HEARINGS. Provide the publisher’s
affidavit with the application for the one public hearing.

FLOOD PLAIN CERTIFICATION: Submit a letter or statement on the local government’s
letterhead stating the relationship of the site to designated flood zones. Recipients must provide
CI a certification signed by the Chief Elected Official stating that the project area is not in a



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 26 of 46

floodplain; or with certification that the recipient participates in the floodplain insurance
program, all properties assisted in the project will be covered for floodplain insurance prior to
beginning construction of the property, and all public facilities will be constructed to comply
with the applicable floodplain regulations.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW RECORD: No funds may be obligated or expended in any
project activity until the grant recipient has complied with the Environmental Review Procedures
for the NC CDBG Program at 24 CFR Part 58 and the CDBG regulations contained in 4 NCAC
19L.1004. The ERR form is located on the NC Department of Commerce’s website located at:
http://www.nccommerce.com/cd/investment-assistance/forms-resources/compliance-plans-and-
templates/environmental-review-process

USE OF AN EXPERIENCED CDBG ADMINISTRTOR: No funds may be obligated or
expended until the recipient has submitted a statement signed by the Chief Elected Official
stating that they will be using an experienced grant administrator or local government staff. This
person should be one who has actually administered more than one CDBG project. Please note
that if issues result from the grant administrator, the local government will be subject to 4 NCAC
19L.

TRAINING CONDITION: All funds expended for training will be with East Carolina
University’s Office of Engagement, Innovation and Economic Development. Staff person paid
with CDBG funds must attend ECU’s OEIED training.

PROGRAM INCOME PLAN: Describe how you will track, manage and use program income.
Refer to the State CDBG Regulations at 04 NCAC 19L.0907 regarding retaining Program
Income.

PROJECT BUDGET must show the main uses and sources of funds over the 30-month grant
period. Use the form provided in the application. Attach any supporting documentation or
clarification of line items directly behind the budget.

LETTERS OF COMMITMENT, CONDITIONAL COMMITMENT, AND EVIDENCE OF
FUNDING APPLICATION from all other (i.e., non-CDBG) sources of funds and/or resources.
Attach letters of commitment for in-kind services, community support, or partnerships, as
necessary.
CAPACITY, EXPERIENCE, AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
□ List of Names and Duties for the Local Government Staff for the Proposed Project and
Other Essential Players
□ Resume for each identified person associated with the proposed project
□ Organizational Chart Identifying the Reporting Relationship and/or Interaction Among
Key Players for the Proposed Project

DRAWDOWN PLAN: Please include and clearly identify the use of CDBG funds and the
timeline over the project period for drawing down the funds. Also, please state whether or not
the applicant (i.e., the local unit of government will use the Reimbursement or Advance (3-day
rule applies) method of payment.



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 27 of 46

NON-PROFIT NARRATIVE ATTACHMENTS
□ Attach a copy of the IRS 501(c)(3) designation of your organization as a Non-Profit.
□ Attach the organization’s articles of incorporation.
□ Attach the organization’s charter or by-laws.
□ Attach the organization’s balance and statement of revenues and expenditures.

APPLICATION SUMMARY- TECBG
1. Applicant’s Name City of Henderson 2. Date

a. Mailing Address P O Box 1434
b. City and Zip Code Henderson, NC 27536_______ Original,

c. County Vance dated:
d. Contact Person Erris Dunston
e. Telephone Number 252-430-5721 _______Amendment,
f. Fax Number 252-492-7935 dated:
g. E-mail address edunston@ci.henderson.nc.us
h. DUNS Number

3. Preparer’s Name Erris Dunston c. Telephone Number
a. Firm’s Name City of Henderson 252-430-5721
b. Mailing Address P O Box 1434
c. City and Zip Code Henderson, NC 27536f. Fax Number
d. e-mail address edunston@ci.henderson.nc.us252-492-7935

4. Program
Category 5. Project

Number 6. Project Name 7. CDBG Funds
Requested

C
1 Flint Hill Neighborhood Capacity Building

$50,000
Total $50,000

10. Certification by the Chief Elected Official

a) I certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief:
(1) Data in this application is true and correct,
(2) Opportunities have been provided for citizen participation and access to

information concerning the proposed activities,
(3) This document has been duly authorized by the governing body of the

applicant and the applicant will comply with the attached certifications and
state
Standards if the assistance is approved.

b) I acknowledge that, if funded, this application is part of the Grant Agreement.

c) Typed Name of Chief Elected Official  James D. O’Geary



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 28 of 46

d) Typed Title  Mayor
e) Signature 
f) Typed Date 

For CI Office Use Only Date Received:
Application Number:

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Name of Applicant: City of Henderson

Discuss the following questions. Do not exceed 5 pages.

1. How will the (sub)/recipient use the Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant funds?

In City’s Strategic Plan, one of the key strategic objectives is to improve housing and
neighborhoods. The City has recognized the benefit of proactive community development
initiatives. Although the City is still recovering from a seven-year economic downfall, this
opportunity provides a means of restoring the once very active community development
department as a vital part of the City organization. The CDBG has historically been a major
player in the City of Henderson’s community development program. This grant program has
filled gaps in economically distressed communities and served as a bridge to rebuilding
neighborhoods that have suffered a decline in resources.

Over the course of the recent economic recession, the City had to freeze its authorized
Community Development Manager position. This position is a vital player in CDBG grant
administration as well as the overall community development initiatives in which the City has
not had the capacity to perform.

These funds will be used as seed funds to unfreeze the Community Development Manager
position, which will afford the City an opportunity to build neighborhood capacity and train staff
to prepare an application for a NC Catalyst Grant category. The City has identified the Flint Hill
Community as a distressed neighborhood in need of revitalization activities. The training module
of the grant program will be used to increase staff knowledge in grant administration, build
community involvement, to perform community surveys and feasibility studies. Although the
training will be provided directly to one staff person, it will be disseminated throughout the
organization and community. This initiative will provide a sustainable means for the future of the
City’s Community Development efforts.

With these funds, we will increase our efforts to obtain our long-term goal of building a healthy
sustainable community. These efforts will include community building partnerships with various
partners such as the Redevelopment Commission to help remove blight, local developers to
construct homes for low-moderate income persons and recreational opportunities to update an
existing park within the neighborhood.

2. How will the funds enable the (sub)/recipient to undertake new activity (ies)?



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 29 of 46

This grant will provide funds for staff salaries of a currently frozen Community Development
Manager Position, training and capacity development in the neighborhood. The position was a
vital part of our Community Development department, it serves direct liaison to the Community
Development Advisory Board and it was the key position in CDBG administration. These funds
will be used to support salaries for the unfunded position. These funds along with the City
obligated funds will provide resources to perform community surveys, feasibility studies and
invest in community engagement activities.

The City Council is in the initial stages of planning to reactivate the Community Development
Advisory committee. This is a citizen committee appointed by the City Council to provide
recommendation to the City Council relative to community development concerns citywide.
This committee is served by a diversity sector of Citizens. There is an additional construct to the
future community development activities in the City by organizing neighborhood steering
committees, for example, the Flint Hill Neighborhood will have a Flint Hill Steering committee.
This committee will be comprised of neighborhood citizens, community leaders, and
stakeholders. They will bring forth concerns; provide a means for building a sense of
neighborhood, serve as drivers in implementing improved neighborhood practices such as
building an environment of watchfulness for one another and will be a generator for community
pride.

The training component of this grant will help build the City’s capacity to write and administer
future CDBG Projects. This training will provide knowledge of how to better design
communities, conducting community surveys, and grant writing. These skills will be shared
locally amongst the City staff and community leaders. The idea of building consensus within the
community and among decision makers is critical to the sustainability of these revitalization
efforts. We feel this is a very important component; therefore, it will become a practice moving
forward in our community development initiatives.
.

3. Why is the CDBG financial assistance needed by the (sub)/recipient to undertake these
activities?

The City is still recovering from a crippling economic recession. We experienced a bottoming in
our revenues about seven years ago when we last some of our major tax paying industries
followed by the crumbling housing market. We have been rebuilding ever since. This forced us
not fund some vital positions such as the Community Development Manager. Therefore, our
community development projects and activities have come to a halt. We have not had the staff
capacity to perform the necessary activities to remain up to date with current community
revitalization trends and practices. Our ability to do due diligence in the area of community
development since we lost that position have been gravely restricted. It is our goal to use the
resource to fund this position and build projects to continue to support the position in the future.
CDBG and other community development grants have been a critical component in maintaining
property values and improving the living conditions for low-moderate income citizens
particularly in area such as the Flint Hill Neighborhood. This is a model neighborhood where
the economic resources of the citizens are minimal and the need are great, the City has had to
rely on CDBG resource to help bridge gaps in the between maintaining valuable properties and
meeting to resources deficiency of the community.



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 30 of 46

The City needs the additional financial assistance in order to build capacity within the
neighborhood. The City of Henderson has an economically distressed population. The Flint Hill
Community is over 51% low and moderate income. The tax base does not afford some of the
essential community development activities to maintain vibrancy in the neighborhood. The
Flint Hill Neighborhood needs some concentrated attention. These funds will provide resources
to do some community engagement, focus on an in-depth study of the community. The training
assistance will benefit the City’s capacity to develop competitive projects. It has been six years
since the City had been awards a CDBG grant. This opportunity will improve the City’s project
building capacity and ensure a competitive grant application that will ultimately fund proposed
NC Catalyst grant and other CDBG projects.

4. If funded, what are the short-term and long-term goals of the (sub)/recipient?

The short-term goals are to perform community engagement activities, build partnerships within
the community, and begin staff training. We have a conceptual plan for the Flint Hill
Neighborhood. An actual master plan is another short-term goal for this project.

The long-term goal is to improve the City Staff capacity in effective and efficient grant
administration. The ultimate goal is to be awarded a NC Catalyst grant in funding year 2013.
This opportunity will help the City build sustainability within its Community Development
Department and embark on other neighborhood revitalization projects. The City is looking to
continue to pursue CDBG funds for future projects. The training opportunity will provide a
resource relative to community development that will enhance the City Staff and the Community
Leaders with a broader knowledge base.

An additional long-term goal is to explore the available partnerships throughout the community.
We are looking to build a healthy sustainable neighborhood. As a part of the City Council’s
Strategic Plan Key Strategic Objective, there is a commitment by the City Council to improve
the housing stock and neighborhoods. These funds will provide resources to perform community
surveys and feasibility studies. We will use this opportunity to raise the standards by
implementing improved neighborhood practices. We will achieve this by establishing a Flint
Hill Neighborhood Steering committee. This group will foster an environment for the
community to begin exploring innovative efforts for building sustainability, encouraging
neighborly relationship amongst the citizen in the community, and to becoming protectively
watchful of each other.

5. What is the product expected to result from the Talent Enhancement Capacity Building
Grant assistance to the (sub)/recipient?

The product expected to result from this grant opportunity is a funded NC Catalyst Grant within
15 months of this grant award. We are also looking to build a sustainable community
development department to develop and manage future CDBG projects. The knowledge received
through training will be disseminated throughout the City organization and to community leaders
throughout the community.



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 31 of 46

The City of Henderson has recently launched a City Academy. This is internal learning
institution where City personnel teach courses, provide peer-to-peer training and share skill
across departmental and professional boundaries. Acquired knowledge from this training will
become a part of the Community Development section of the Academy. Community
Development will become a part of that curriculum with possible students being the City
Manager, Zoning Administrator, Main Street Manager, Code Compliance Director, Code
Compliance Inspector, City Engineer, and other relative City Staff. It is the idea of the City
Management that the best results come from efforts that include collaboration and a
comprehensive approach.

6. Describe the (sub)/recipient’s target market.

The City of Henderson has a diverse population. The targeted Flint Hill Neighborhood over 51%
low –moderate income. This neighborhood is very low income. There is economic disparity
within this neighborhood. Although there is approximately 60% rental homes in this
neighborhood within the direct project area there are low-income homeowners. It is the goal of
this project to meet two of the three national objectives 1) benefiting low and moderate-income
persons and 2) preventing or eliminating blight. We are looking for these opportunities to create
a neighborhood that is attractive to a diverse population of citizens. One of the goals for the
neighborhood park update is to make this community attractive for families with children to live.

7. Explain how the (sub)/recipient has been working with potential applicants/clients.

We held two public hearings where we received public comments. We used those comments to
direct our focus on this neighborhood. We have hosted a community engagement workshop.
During this workshop, we identified the project area. We will conduct other workshops and
community engagement activities to continue to build relationships and support with the citizens
in the community.

8. Describe the (sub)/recipient’s plans/strategy on how it will develop relationships with
partners that lead to the needed additional funding sources for the future CDBG project.

It is the City’s Strategy to continue to build relationships with its partners to develop capacity in
the Flint Hill Neighborhood. We are looking to collaborate with the Redevelopment
Commission to use their arm of enforcement to remove blighted structures. We are seeking
partnership with recreational opportunity and the faith base organizations to assist in the
updating and maintaining of the neighborhood park. We are looking to rebuild a sense of
community pride by collaborating with the already established Property Owners group to
improve the esthetic neighborhood standards and appearance. We want to heighten the
awareness and seek opportunities to enhance the acceptable standard relative to curb appeal
throughout the neighborhood.

At this time, we do not know the exact degree additional funding resources will come from these
relationships however; they are building a network of potential capital. These efforts will build
sustainability for the entire Flint Hill Neighborhood Community includes the focus project area.



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 32 of 46

9. If available, list any other funding sources for activities the (sub)/recipient plans to
undertake in the future CDBG project. N/A

10. What is the position of the person that will attend the training at East Carolina University
(ECU)?

The Community Development Manager Position that is currently frozen, the Planning Director
will be trained until this position is filled.

PROJECT BUDGET-TECBG
Name of Applicant: City of Henderson
1. CDBG Grant Amount Requested $50,000
2. Other Funds $10,000
3. Total Project Resources $60,000
4. Activity 5. CDBG Costs 6. Other Costs 7. Total Project Costs
a. Acquisition
b. Disposition
c. Public facilities and improvements
(1) Senior and handicapped centers
(2) Parks, playgrounds and recreation facilities
(3) Neighborhood facilities
(4) Solid waste disposal facilities
(5) Fire protection and equipment
(6) Parking facilities
(7) Public utilities other than water and sewer
(8) [Reserved]
(9) Street improvements
(10) Flood and drainage improvements
(11) Pedestrian improvements
(12) Other public facilities
(13) Public sewer improvements
(14) Public water improvements
d. Clearance activities
e. Public services
f. Relocation assistance
g. Construction, rehabilitation and preservation activities
(1) Construction or rehabilitation of commercial
and industrial buildings
(2) Rehabilitation of privately owned dwellings
3) Rehabilitation of publicly owned dwellings
(4) Code enforcement
(5) Historic preservation
h. Development financing
(1) Working capital
(2) Machinery and equipment



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 33 of 46

i. Removal of architectural barriers
j. Other activities 10,000 10,000
k. SUBTOTAL $ $ $
l. Planning {Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant Activities} 45,000 45,000
m. Administration of CDBG Grant 5,000 5,000
n. TOTAL $60,000 $ $60,000

BREAKOUT OF COSTS
Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant Name of Applicant:
1. Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant Activities Cost (column 5n) 50,000
2. Other Funds (column 6n) 10,000
3. Total Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant (TECBG) Resources (should =
column 7n) 60,000
4. Activity 5. TECBG Costs 6. Other Costs 7. Total TECBG Costs
l. Planning (Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant Activities)

1. Personnel
(a) Supplemental for existing staff 15,000
(b) New Position(s) 20,000

2. Training
(a) Existing Staff 3,500
(b) New Position(s)

3. Travel
(a) Supplemental for Existing staff 3,000
(b) New Position(s)

4. Planning (with restriction) 3,500 10,000
m. Administration (10% maximum) 5,000
n. TOTAL 50,000 10,000 60,000

1. Personnel costs include fringe and benefits

2. Training and travel costs must be necessary for building capacity to develop a CDBG
application and must be tied to hiring of new staff or supplementing the salary of existing staff.

NOTE:

1. Time sheets MUST be kept for all personnel paid with Talent Enhancement Capacity
Building Grant (TECBG) funds.

2. Documentation on training and travel is REQUIRED for TECBG payment.
(Local unit of government must keep on file the following: (1) information such as brochures,
etc. on training staff attended, (2) copies of registration forms, (3) receipts for payment of
training and registration, (4) invoices showing payment of hotel stays and (5) receipts for meals.)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CHECKLIST



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 34 of 46

To assist applicants with determining if a potential conflict of interest exists, as defined in 24
CFR Part 570.489 (h), please provide responses to the following questions. For any “yes”
response, refer to Bulletin 10-8 for next steps.

1. Does any person involved with this potential CDBG project have family or business ties
with any of the local government elected officials or local government staff? NO

2. Has any person involved with this potential CDBG project requested or received an
opinion about a potential conflict of interest from an attorney or from the North Carolina Ethics
Commission? NO

3. Does any person involved with this potential CDBG project have an ownership interest in
an entity that is directly affected by activities proposed in the application? NO

4. Will any person involved with this potential CDBG project derive any income or
commission as a direct result of action taken by the local government elected board or its staff?
NO

PROGRAM COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

As Chief Elected Official, I certify that, if funded, we will comply with all applicable federal and
state Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant (TECBG) program requirements (same as
CDBG) concerning the Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant application/grant and any
future CDBG application/grant resulting from this application.

I also certify that a public hearing was held by the local governing board to inform the public
about submitting an application to the Community Investment.

Name of Chief Elected Official ________James D. O’Geary_____________
Title
___________Mayor______________________
Signature
________________________________________
Date
________________________________________

STATEMENT OF CERTIFICATION FOR FUTURE APPLICATION AND BENEFIT

We, the undersigned, do certify that if this Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant
application is funded, the Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant funds will be used to
produce a Small Cities Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) application within 15
months of the Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant award. Any project developed and
funded in the future CDBG application as a result of the Talent Enhancement Capacity Building
Grant will benefit at least 51% low and moderate-income people.



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 35 of 46

Name of Chief Elected Official ________James D. O’Geary____________
Title
____________Mayor_____________________
Signature
________________________________________
Date
________________________________________

(If Applicable)

Name of Authorized Official of Non-Profit Partner
________________________________________

Title
________________________________________
Signature
________________________________________
Date
________________________________________

FEDERAL CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

The applicant hereby assures and certifies that:
a) It will comply with all applicable federal and state laws, regulations, rules and Executive
Orders.
b) It possesses legal authority to apply for the grant, and to execute the proposed program.
c) Its governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act a resolution, motion or
similar action authorizing the filing of the application, including all understandings and
assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing the identified as the official
representative of the applicant to act in connection with the application and to provide such
additional information as may be required.
d) It is following a detailed, written citizen participation plan which will provide
opportunities for citizen participation, hearings, and access to information with respect to its
community development program that are comparable to those required of grantees under
Section 104(a) of the Act and in accordance with Rule .1002 of the North Carolina Community
Development Block Grant Administrative Rules.
e) Its chief elected official or other officer of the applicant if assistance is approved by
Commerce:
1) Consents to assume the status of the “responsible Federal Official” as that term is used in
Section 102 of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), Section 104(f) of Title 1 of the
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, and other provisions of Federal
law, as specified in 24 CFR 58.5 which further the purposes of NEPA.



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 36 of 46

2) Is authorized and consents on behalf of the applicant and himself to accept the
jurisdiction of the Federal courts for the purpose of enforcement of his responsibilities as such an
official.
3) Consents to review and comment on all Environmental Impact Statements prepared for
Federal projects which may have an impact on the applicant’s/recipient’s community
development program.
4) Consents to perform all coordination functions required under 24 CFR Part 58 and 40
CFR Parts 1500-1508.
f) The Community Development Program has been developed so as to give maximum
feasible priority to activities which will benefit low and moderate income families or aid in the
prevention or elimination of slums and blight. The requirement for this certification will not
preclude Commerce from approving an application where the applicant certifies, and Commerce
determines, that all or part of the Community Development Program activities are designed to
meet other community development needs having particular urgency as specifically explained in
the application in accordance with Section .0800 of 4 NCAC 19L of the North Carolina
Administrative Code.
g) Its program will be conducted and administered in conformity with Public Law 88-352
and Public Law 90-284, and that it will affirmatively further fair housing.
h) It will comply with all provisions of 4 NCAC 19L of the North Carolina Administrative
Code, entitled North Carolina Community Development Block Grant Program.
i) It will give Commerce, HUD and the Comptroller General through any authorized
representative access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers or documents related
to the grant.
j) It will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using positions for a purpose that
is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or
others, particularly those with whom they have family, business, or other ties.
k) It will follow a residential anti-displacement and relocation assistance plan that is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 104(d) and all other provisions of the Act.
l) It will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements assisted in whole
or part under Section 106 of the Act or with amounts resulting from a guarantee under Section
108 of the Act by assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of
low and moderate income, including any fee charged to assessment made as a condition of
obtaining access to such public improvements, unless (i) funds received under Section 106 are
used to pay the proportion of such fee or assessment that relates to the capital costs of such
public improvements that are financed from revenue sources other than under this title; or (ii)
for purposes of assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of low
and moderate income who are not persons of very low income, the grantee certifies to the
Secretary or such State, as the case may be, that it lacks sufficient funds received under Section
106 to comply with requirements of clause (i).
m) It has or will develop a plan that identifies community development and housing needs,
including the needs of low and moderate income persons, and the activities to be undertaken to
meet such needs.
n) Its notification, inspection, testing and abatement procedures concerning lead-based
paint will comply with 24 CFR Part 35.
o) When issuing statements, press releases, request for proposals, bid solicitation and other
documents describing the above-mentioned program such as the environmental review, public
hearings, fair housing notices, etc., it shall clearly state:



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 37 of 46

1) the percentage of the total cost of the project which will be financed with CDBG money,
and
2) the dollar amount of CDBG funds for the project.
p)
1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement,
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form- LLL,
“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.
3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grant, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and
disclose accordingly.
q) It has adopted and will enforce a policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law
enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in nonviolent civil
rights demonstrations and has adopted and is enforcing a policy of enforcing applicable state and
local laws against physically barring entrance to or exit from a facility or location which is the
subject of such nonviolent civil rights demonstration within its jurisdiction in accordance with
Section 519 of Public Law 101-144, (the 1990 HUD Appropriations Act).
r) All project areas are either not in a floodplain, or if the project area is in a floodplain, the
applicant participates in the flood insurance program. All properties assisted in the project will
be covered for flood insurance prior to beginning construction, and all public facilities will be
constructed to comply with applicable floodplain regulations.

CERTIFICATION OF ABILITY
The City of Henderson hereby certifies its ability to meet Federal Performance and Procurement
Requirements with Certification as further expanded in the preceding attachments.

Name of Chief Elected Official ___James D. O’Geary_________________
Title _______Mayor_______________________
Signature
________________________________________
Date ________________________________________

DISCLOSURE REPORT

1. Applicant/Recipient Name, Address, and Phone:
2. Check One: __x__ Initial Report ____ Update Report
3. Social Security Number or Employer ID Number: _____________________



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 38 of 46

4. Project Name and Location:
5. Total Amount requested/received (including anticipated program income):
$__50,000_______________
6. Other government assistance. Check One:
___x__No other government assistance is, or is expected to be, provided for this project

_____ All other government assistance provided for this project is listed on the table
below/attached page(s).
(Note: Disclosures must be complete and accurate, but need to be made only once for this
report. If assistance is reported in the Sources and Uses disclosure section, then it need not also
be reported here. If there is assistance reportable here, but reported only in the Sources and Uses
disclosure, check here:
_____ Assistance is disclosed in Sources and Uses Attachments
Agency Name and Address Program and Type of Assistance Amount Requested/Received

7. Interested Parties. Check One:
___x__ No parties have a reportable financial interest in this project. Interested parties include
developers, contractors, consultants, individuals, entities including units of government with a
financial interest greater than $50,000 or 10 percent of the assistance (whichever is lower; being
a party to a contract procured under Federal procurement regulations at 24 CFR Part 85 does not,
by itself, constitute a reportable financial interest).
_____ All parties with a reportable financial interest are listed on table below/attached page(s).

Name and Address Type of Participation Interest ($ and %)
City of Henderson Planning $10,000

8. All expected sources of funds available or expected to be available for the project or
activity and all reportable uses of funds are included in the application for funds and on the
following forms (check all that apply):

___x__ CDBG PROJECT BUDGET
_____ CDBG LOCAL COMMITMENT FORM
_____ Other Attachment(s). Describe: _____________________

9. Certification:
I hereby certify that all information in this report and its attachments is true and complete.

Signature Date

DISCLOSURE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS

Who should complete the report:
All applicants who expect to receive an aggregate amount of covered federal assistance

for a project or activity that exceeds $200,000 are required to make certain disclosures. State
CDBG funds are covered by the requirement, as are most other programs where funds are
administered by or passed through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Therefore, all applicants of more than $200,000 in N. C. CDBG funds, including anticipated
program income, should complete the report. In addition, any applicants to a State grantee for a



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 39 of 46

subgrant should complete the report if more than $200,000 in covered assistance is or can
reasonably be anticipated. The requirement addresses the aggregate amount of assistance.
Therefore, if the applicant anticipates less than $200,000 in CDBG assistance, but intends to
combine the funds with enough other covered assistance (such as Section 8 project-based
Housing Assistance Payments) to exceed $200,000 in total assistance, the applicant must make
the disclosures. Any applicant/recipient who is required to complete a disclosure report for
another agency in conjunction with a project assisted with State CDBG funds may submit a copy
of that disclosure report to the Department of Commerce rather than completing a separate
report.

Recipients who have previously filed disclosure reports must file update reports if the
information in the original report changes either because of later developments subject to
disclosure, or because of changes in the amount of government assistance, the sources of funds,
or the uses of funds equal to the lower of $250,000 or 10 percent of the applicable base (usually
total project costs), or because of an increase in the financial interest of a person equal to the
lower of $50,000 or 10 percent of such interest.
Detailed Instructions:
1. Enter the name, address, and telephone number, including area code, of the applicant or
recipient.
2. Indicate whether the report is an initial report or an update report.
3. Enter the Social Security Number or the Employer Identification Number of the applicant
or recipient.
4. Enter the project name and indicate the location as specifically as possible. In the case
of update reports, give the CDBG grant number.
5. Enter the total amount of assistance being requested as stated in the application, including
anticipated program income. In the case of update reports, enter the total amount of assistance
provided according to the funding approval and anticipated program income.
6. Indicate whether other government assistance is being provided, or can reasonably be
expected to be provided, for the project. Other government assistance includes any loan, grant,
guarantee, insurance payment, rebate, subsidy, credit, tax benefit, or any other form of direct or
indirect assistance from the Federal government, a State, or a unit of general local government,
or any agency or instrumentality thereof, that is, or is expected to be made, available with respect
to the project or activities for which the assistance is being sought.
If other government assistance is provided, or expected to be provided for the project, all such
assistance must be disclosed on attachments incorporated into the report. The disclosures should
list the granting agency, the program and type of assistance (e.g., grant, loan, guarantee), and the
amount expected to be made available.
Disclosures need only be made once, so that if this information is given in the Sources and Uses
attachments, this may be indicated by checking the appropriate blank under “6. Other
Government Assistance” on the Attachments page of the report.
7. Indicate whether there are persons with a reportable financial interest in the project.
“Person” means an individual, corporation or business, unit of general local government or other
governmental entity or agency or any other organization or group of people. A reportable
financial interest is any financial involvement in the project including equity interest, shares in
any profit on resale or distribution of cash or other assets, or receipt of compensation for goods
or services provided in connection with the project or activities, which can be expected to exceed
the lower of $50,000 or 10 percent of the assistance sought. Compensation for performance of a
contract procured under Federal procurement regulations is not, by itself, a covered financial



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 40 of 46

interest. Residency of an individual in housing for which assistance is being sought is not, by
itself, considered a covered financial interest.
If there are parties with a reportable financial interest, the name and pecuniary interest of the
parties must be disclosed in referenced attachments. If the party is an entity such as a unit of
government or a corporation, the disclosure must include an identification of each officer,
director, and/or principal stockholder. The pecuniary interest disclosure must include the type of
participation (such as owner, contractor, investor) and the amount of the financial interest
expressed both as a dollar amount and as a percentage of the amount of assistance involved.
8. Reference the statement or statements attached to the report showing the sources and uses
of the funds available for, or expected to be available for, the project. Disclosure must be made
of the gross amount of funds from all sources, including both governmental and non-
governmental sources of funds and private capital resulting from tax benefits. For most projects,
the financial forms in the appropriate guidelines will be adequate to document sources and uses.
Please note, however, that if the “Other Government Assistance” disclosure section references
the Sources and Uses Disclosures, then these Disclosures must identify the program and type of
assistance.
9. Certification: The signatory certifies that all information in the report is complete and
accurate. That is, except as disclosed in the report and attachments, there is no other government
assistance, no other interested parties, and no other sources and uses of funds.

STATE CDBG PROGRAM REGULATIONS

1. Citizen Participation

If funded, the grantee will have documentation on file of compliance with citizen participation
requirements in the application process 4 NCAC 19L. 1002 (b): publisher’s affidavits of notices
and minutes signed by the town or county clerk of the one required public hearings.

2. Project Administration

 The grantee is responsible for CDBG oversight. If funded, the grantee will supervise the
implementation of the project as follows:
 The local government manager reviews and signs off on all project reports.
 The project administrator or local government staff will present and give at least
quarterly written status reports to the elected board. A signed copy of the quarterly report must
be submitted to the grant representative for review.
 At least two persons from the local government listed on the signatory cards will review
and sign off on invoices and requests for payment.
 Maintain all project files at the local government offices and make them available to
citizens during regular business hours.

3. Audits/Compliance
CDBG grantees expending $25,000 or more in a fiscal year are required to have funds audited
for the CDBG program. CDBG funds can be used to pay for the CDBG portion of the audit
provided the grantee has expended $500,000 or more in the fiscal year in total federal awards
(CDBG and other federal funds). If the grantee has expended less than $500,000 in total federal



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 41 of 46

awards, the grantee may budget local funds in the administrative line item in the CDBG
application to pay for the CDBG portion of the audit and claim the local administrative funds as
local commitment.

4. Program Income
If the local government makes a loan to the developer, a plan for reuse of funds will be
developed subject to CI approval.

5. Legally Binding Commitment (LBC)
The local government will develop and execute a LBC with the non-profit subject to Community
Investment requirements.

The applicant hereby assures and certifies that by his/her signature, its duly authorized official
has read and understands the State CDBG Program Standards and, if funded, will adhere to all
standards applicable to the funded project.

Name of Chief Elected Official

_____James D. O’Geary____________________
Title
_____Mayor______________________________
Signature

________________________________________
Date
________________________________________

DISCLOSURE OF CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLAINTS/LAWSUITS

The City of Henderson hereby assures and certifies that there are no open, unresolved or pending
civil rights complaints or lawsuits against the participating local governments in this Talent
Enhancement Capacity Building Grant project. Furthermore, if there are any liens that have been
placed on the City/County/Town, this fact must be disclosed and the circumstances of the lien
must be described below.

Name of Chief Elected Official
James D. O’Geary_______________________
Title Mayor_______________________________
Signature________________________________________
Date ________________________________________

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 42 of 46

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below. Applicants should also review the
instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form, signature on
this form provides for compliance with certification requirements implementing Federal
Executive Order 12549 and guidance issued in the Federal Register, Volume 70, No. 168, pages
51863 through 51880 for “Government wide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement).”
The certification shall be treated as a material representation of fact upon which reliance will be
placed when the Department of Commerce determines to award the covered transaction, grant or
cooperative agreement.
As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, for prospective participants
in primary covered transactions:

1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that
it and its principals:
a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by a Federal department or agency;
b. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction or records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property:
c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated
in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and
d. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.
2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in
this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.
As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I hereby certify that the applicant will
comply with the above applicable certification(s).

Name of Applicant/Grantee
City of Henderson Project Name
Flint Hill Neighborhood Capacity Building
Printed Name and Title of Authorized Representative
James D. O’Geary, Mayor
Signature

Date

INSTRUCTIONS FOR DEBARMENT CERTIFICATIONS

1. By signing and submitting this form, the prospective participant is providing the
certification set out on the “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other
Responsibility Matters” in accordance with these instructions.
2. Consequences of False Certification - The certification is a material representation of fact
upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined
that the prospective participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 43 of 46

other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this
transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
3. Errors in Certifying. - The prospective participant shall provide immediate written notice
to the person to which this proposal is submitted if, at any time, the prospective participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of
changed circumstances.
4. Definitions and Further Guidance - The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,”
“suspended,” “ineligible,” ”lower tier covered transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary
covered transaction,” ”principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause
have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage section of rules implementing
Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for
assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations or you may refer to the Federal Register, Vol.
70, No. 168, pages 51863 –51880.
5. Certification Extends to Subcontractors - The prospective participant agrees by
submitting this form that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not
knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred,
suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered
transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction
originated.
6. Certification Included in Subcontracts - The prospective participant further agrees by
submitting this form that it will include this clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment,
Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction,” without
modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.
7. Reliance on Certification - A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a
certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred,
suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transition, unless it knows that
the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it
determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List.
8. New System of Records Not Required - Nothing contained in the foregoing should be
construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the
certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not
required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course
of business dealings.
9. Consequences for Use of Ineligible Subgrantees - Except for transactions authorized under
paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a
lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available
to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may
pursue available remedies including suspension and/or debarment.

ACTIVITIES IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE Name of Applicant: City of Henderson

Month 1 begins as of the date of Assistant Secretary signature on the Grant Agreement and
Funding Approval.



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 44 of 46

List activities to be implemented and put an “X” in the columns for the beginning and ending
months and connect with a straight line. List all activities to be carried out with
TECBG funds. For example, this includes training of staff, hiring of staff or a consultant.

Months
Activities 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

1. Grant Agreement/
Funding Approval x x

2. Clearing Conditions
(non-standard) x x

3. Staff Training
x x

4.Community Engagement
x x

5.Community Survey
x x

6.Project Feasibility Study
x x

7.Grant Application Preparation
x x

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13. Closeout of Grant



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 45 of 46

(Submit to CI)
x x

14. Submit CDBG Application
To CI

x x
15.

NON-PROFIT PARTNER CERTIFICATION
1. Name of Non-Profit:
Address of Non-Profit:
City and Zip Code
Telephone Number:
Fax Number:
E-mail Address:
2. Number of years non-profit has existed as an organization:
3. Number of years organization has had its 501 (c) 3 designation:
4. Certification by the Executive Director

a) I certify that information provided on the non-profit organization is true and to the
following statements:
1) The capacity building funds to be provided to the organization as a sub-recipient will
enable the organization to undertake activities heretofore not viable because of a lack of
capacity in the organization;
2) If funded, the organization and its Board understand that as a sub-recipient of the Talent
Enhancement Capacity Building Grant (TECBG) funds, it will inherit the same federal and state
requirements and responsibilities as the applicant/grantee.
3) The organization’s role in this application has been duly authorized by the governing
board of the organization and the organization will comply with the attached certifications and
all other federal and state requirements.
b) I acknowledge that, if funded, this application is part of the Grant Agreement.
c) Typed Name of Executive Director
d) Typed Title
e) Signature
f) Typed Date

NON-PROFIT PARTNER INFORMATION

Please attach the information requested below in an appendix following the application forms.
With the exception of questions 1a and 1b, answers should be no more than 2 pages per question.

A. NARRATIVE QUESTIONS

1. Staff and Board of Directors

a. List names and titles of key staff members (optional: attach resumes)



CAF 13-63: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 46 of 46

b. List names of the Board of Directors. Indicate officer and describe any related
experience of each member.
c. How are the board members chosen?
d. How many persons are full voting members of the governing body?
e. How many full voting members of the governing body are residents of the service area?
f. How many full voting members of the governing body are low and moderate-income
residents?
g. How many full voting members of the governing body are representatives of low and
moderate-income organizations?
h. How many full voting members of the governing body are appointed by, consist of
elected or other officials or employees of the local government(s) within the organization’s
geographic area of operation?

2. Describe the organization's mission.

3. Describe the organization's services.

4. Describe the organization's service area. Is the project area predominantly low/moderate
income?

5. List non-profit's current and past activities and/or other housing projects. Have there
been any problems in building houses (or other activities) so far? If so, what were the lessons
learned and how will new projects overcome previous problems?

6. What are the non-profit's future plans? Will there be any program income from this
project and others (or permanent sources of income) that will be used for future development?

7. How does the non-profit work with other service agencies in the community?

B. ATTACHMENTS TO NON-PROFIT NARRATIVES

1. Attach a copy of the IRS 501(c)(3) designation of your organization as a Non-Profit.

2. Attach the organization’s articles of incorporation.

3. Attach the organization’s charter or by-laws.

4. Attach the organization’s balance and statement of revenues and expenditures.



CAF 13-70: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 1 of 2

5 June 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council

FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager

RE: CAF: 13-70: Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-50, Requesting the
County of Vance to Consider Amending its Tax Collections’ Policies as it Relates to
Delinquent Taxes

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Council Core Values and Goals Addressed By This Item:

 CV 9: We value a good working relationship with the County of Vance and believe by
working together in a cooperative effort we can better address the strategic challenges and
opportunities facing our community.

 KSO 8: To provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and capital outlay necessary to
meet the needs of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory authorities.

Recommendation:

 Approval of Resolution 13-50, Requesting the County of Vance to Consider Amending its
Tax Collections’ Policies as it Relates to Delinquent Taxes.

Executive Summary:

During its Budget Work Session #4 held on Tuesday, 4 June, members of Council discussed the
need for more aggressive tax collection efforts for delinquent taxes. To that end, it was the
unanimous consensus of the Council to consider a Resolution requesting Vance County to
consider implementing new policies that would enhance the collection of delinquent taxes,
particularly those in the latter years.

Enclosures:
1. Resolution 13-50

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430.5701

Agenda Item:

Council Meeting: 10 June 2013 Reg Meeting



CAF 13-70: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 2 of 2

RESOLUTION 13-50

A RESOLUTION OF THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL
REQUESTING THE VANCE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
TO CONSIDER IMPLEMENTATION OF ENHANCED DELINQUENT

TAX COLLECTION POLICIES AND PRACTICES

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 2013
Strategic Planning Retreat; and

WHEREAS, one of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 8: To
provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and capital outlay necessary to meet the
needs of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory authorities; and

WHEREAS, through an Inter-local Agreement, the County of Vance provides tax billing and collection
services to the City of Henderson; and

WHEREAS, NC General Statues require the writing-off of delinquent property taxes after ten (10) years;
and

WHEREAS, it is important that all property owners pay their taxes, and the writing-off of taxes places a
greater burden on those that do pay their taxes; and

WHEREAS, more aggressive and enhanced collection policies and practices for delinquent taxes may
increase revenues to both City and County governments during these difficult economic times.

NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES
HEREBY REQUEST the Vance County Board of Commissioners consider implementing new
delinquent tax collection policies and practices that would help increase the rate of collection by
enhancements such as focusing on the oldest taxes first rather than using the alphabetical listing,
hiring a staff attorney for the Tax Department to focus full-time on foreclosure, etc.

The foregoing Resolution, introduced by Council Member ** and seconded by Council Member **on this
the 10th day of June 2013 and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was ***** by the following votes:
Yes: . No:. Absent:. Abstain:.

___________________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:
_______________________________
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk

Approved to Legal Form:
________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney

Reference: Minute Book 42, p **: CAF 13-70



CAF 13-67: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 1 of 1

________________________________________
4 June 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager
RE: CAF: 13-67

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-47, Providing for the Disposition of
Certain Jointly Held Property by the City and County Otherwise Identified or
Located at 701 East Avenue, Vance County Tax Parcel 0079 04002

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:

 Core Value 9: We value a good working relationship with the County of Vance and believe
that by working together in a cooperative effort we can better address the strategic challenges
and opportunities facing our community.

Recommendation:

 Approval of Resolution 13-47 Providing for the Disposition of Certain Jointly Held
Property by the City and County Otherwise Identified / Located at 701 East Avenue, Vance
County Tax Parcel 0079 04002.

Executive Summary:

Vance County has received interest from Early Falsom Properties, Inc. to purchase this property
owned by both the City and County. Early Falsom has submitted a bid of $2,000 to Vance
County. Vance County has approved the attached resolution and published the property for sale
and now they are waiting on any upset bid along with City Council approval of making the
property surplus. Disposing of this property will put the property back on the tax books. The
property is valued at $14,664 and taxes owed are listed were $2,170.00. There are no additional
liens on the property.

Enclosures:

1. Resolution 13-47

2. Vance County Resolution

3. Map

4. Pictures

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430.5701

Agenda Item: _____________

Council Meeting: 10 Jun. 2013 Regular Meeting





































CAF 13-62: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 1 of 4

________________________________________

17 May 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager
RE: CAF: 13-62

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-44, Approving the Submission of a
Letter of Support to the Triangle North Board of Directors Encouraging More
Aggressive Marketing Tactics be Utilized for the Triangle North Industrial Parks

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:

 Core Value 7: Teamwork and Collaborative Efforts - We value teamwork and collaborative
efforts with our fellow workers, stakeholders, and partners and believe that through such
efforts we will be better able to achieve our goals and objectives.

Recommendation:

 Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-44, Approving the Submission of a Letter of
Support to the Triangle North Board of Directors Encouraging More Aggressive Marketing
Tactics be Utilized for the Triangle North Industrial Parks.

Executive Summary

On 13 May 2013 the Henderson-Vance County Economic Development Commission (EDC) sent
the City a copy of a letter they addressed to the Chair of the Triangle North Executive
Committee requesting a more aggressive approach to marketing tactics for the four Triangle
North Industrial Parks that are located in Vance, Granville, Warren and Franklin Counties.

The EDC is requesting that the Council consider endorsing their actions by also submitting a
letter of support to the Triangle North Board of Directors.

Enclosures:

1. Resolution 13-44
2. Copy of Letter from HVEDC

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430.5701

Agenda Item: _________

Council Meeting: 10 June 2013 Reg. Meeting



CAF 13-62: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 2 of 4

RESOLUTION 13-44

APPROVING THE SUBMISSION OF A LETTER OF SUPPORT TO THE
TRIANGLE NORTH BOARD OF DIRECTORS ENCOURAGING MORE

AGGRESSIVE MARKETING TACTICS BE UTILIZED FOR THE
TRIANGLE NORTH INDUSTRIAL PARKS

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 2013, and

during said retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals and 12 Core Values;

and

WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Core Values as follows: Core Value 7: Teamwork and
Collaborative Efforts - We value teamwork and collaborative efforts with our fellow workers,
stakeholders, and partners and believe that through such efforts we will be better able to achieve
our goals and objectives.

WHEREAS, Triangle North is an innovative rural economic development initiative created through a
unique multi-county collaboration and cost-sharing arrangement by four northern counties of the
Research Triangle Region, North Carolina, to spark economic growth and opportunity; and

WHEREAS, Triangle North Industrial Parks serve the counties of Vance, Granville, Warren and Franklin;
and

WHEREAS, the Henderson-Vance County Economic Development Commission (EDC) has sent a letter
to the Chair of the Triangle North Executive Committee requesting more aggressive tactics be
utilized for the marketing of the Triangle North Industrial Parks; and

WHEREAS, the EDC has asked that the City Council endorse the actions of the EDC by approving the
submission of a letter of support to the Triangle North Executive Committee.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Henderson approves the
submission of a letter to the Triangle North Executive Committee to show their support of the
recommendations of the Henderson-Vance County EDC that more aggressive marketing tactics
be utilized for the Triangle North Industrial Parks.

The foregoing Resolution 13-44, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member **,
and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and was ______________
on this the __day of ________ 2013: YES: . NO: None. ABSTAIN: . ABSENT: .

_____________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:

______________________________________
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk
Approved to Legal Form:
_____________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney

Reference Minute Book 42, p ***; CAF 13-62



CAF 13-62: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 3 of 4



CAF 13-62: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 4 of 4







































CAF 13-66: 10 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 1 of 2

________________________________________
29 May 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager
RE: CAF: 13-66

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-46, Declaring That Kerr Lake Water Levels
Have Improved and That Voluntary Conservation Measures are no Longer Required in
Accordance with Chapter 15B of the Water Shortage Response Ordinance.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:

 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems.

Recommendation:

 Approval of Resolution 13-46, Declaring That Kerr Lake Water Levels Have Improved and That
Voluntary Conservation Measures are no Longer Required in Accordance with Chapter 15B of the
Water Shortage Response Ordinance.

Executive Summary:

During the winter of 2012 the Corps of Engineers declared drought conditions at Kerr Lake due to a
deepening drought in Central and Western North Carolina and Virginia with little significant rain in the
forecast for December. The water level continued to drop bringing the level down to 292.35 feet at one
point. The Water Shortage Response Plan requires voluntary water conservation when the water level at
Kerr Lake is consistently at or below 294.00 feet.

Subsequently, the Roanoke River Basin received measurable rainfall and some snow events throughout
January, February, March, April and May of 2013, raising the water level of Kerr Lake above 294.00 ft.
The water level has stayed in this range throughout the month of May. As a result, voluntary water
conservation measures are no longer required; however, the City continues to encourage good
stewardship of its water resources.

Enclosure:

1. Resolution 13-46

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430.5701

Agenda Item: _____________

Council Meeting: 10 June 13 Regular Meeting



CAF 13-66: 10 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 2 of 2

R E S O L U T I O N 13-46

DECLARING THAT KERR LAKE WATER LEVELS HAVE IMPROVED AND THAT
VOLUNTARY CONSERVATION MEASURES ARE NO LONGER REQUIRED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 15B OF THE WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE

ORDINANCE.

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January
2013, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and

WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally
Compliant Infrastructure Systems; and

WHEREAS, the in the winter of 2012 the Corps of Engineers declared drought conditions at Kerr Lake;
and

WHEREAS, the City’s Water Shortage Response Plan calls for the declaration that voluntary
conservation conditions exist when the water level is consistently at or below elevation of 294.00
feet; and

WHEREAS, due to significant rainfall during the winter and spring, the current water level at Kerr Lake
has reached and maintained a level of approximately 304.00 feet.

NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES
HEREBY recognize that Kerr Lake water levels have improved and in accordance with the City
of Henderson’s Drought Response Measures stated in Chapter 15B of the City of Henderson’s
Code, declares that Voluntary Water Conservation measures are no longer required, however the
City encourages its Kerr Lake Regional Water Partners and all water customers of the Greater
Kerr Lake Regional Water System to use good stewardship of its water resources.

The foregoing Resolution 13-46, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member **,
and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was ***** on this the ***
day of **** 2012: YES: . NO: . ABSTAIN: . ABSENT: .

_____________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

Approved to Legal Form:

________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney

Reference: Minute Book 41, pp. **



CAF 13-64: April 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 1 of 4

________________________________________
21 May 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager
RE: CAF 13-64

Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the
Month of April 2013.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Recommendation:

 Approval of tax releases and refunds from Vance County for the month of April 2013.

Executive Summary

The Vance County Tax office submitted the following tax releases and refunds to the Finance
Department for the month of April 2013. These releases and refunds are found to be in order and
are being recommended for approval.

April 2013 Tax Releases

Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property

Releases

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 6.59$

Crews, William Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 18.61$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 167.60$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 6.91$

Crews, William Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 19.52$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 14.53$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 7.24$

Crews, William Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 20.44$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 95.21$

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252-430-5701

Agenda Item: _____________

Council Meeting: 10 June 13 Regular Meeting



CAF 13-64: April 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 2 of 4

April 2013 Tax Releases

Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 7.24$

Crews, Will iam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 20.44$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 15.21$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 7.24$

Crews, Will iam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 20.44$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 15.21$

Evans, Correll G Est Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 21.78$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 7.91$

Crews, Will iam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 22.43$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 18.65$

Evans, Correll G Est Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 32.21$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 8.19$

Crews, Will iam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 23.22$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 19.31$

Evans, Correll G Est Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 33.35$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 8.19$

Crews, Will iam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 23.22$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 19.31$

Evans, Correll G Est Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 33.35$

Allen, Jerry W Pro-Rate 2011 (34.78)$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 8.21$

Crews, Will iam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 23.21$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 19.28$

Evans, Correll G Est Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 33.35$

Sneed, Mary Pers. Prop.Bi lled in Error 2011 34.78$

Branch Exterminating Pers. Prop.Bi lled in Error 2012 1,524.49$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 8.21$

Crews, Will iam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 23.21$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 19.28$

Evans, Correll G Est Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 33.35$

Nevils, Ralph T III Pers. Prop.Bi lled in Error 2012 16.09$

Pena, Amada Morales Double Billed 2012 31.62$

Redevelopment Commission Government 2012 1,173.49$

Sneed, Mary Pers. Prop.Bi lled in Error 2012 31.62$

Vance County Pupil Transp. Government 2012 64.17$

Wheeler, Henry Lee Jr. Pers. Prop.Bi lled in Error 2012 31.36$

Total R&P Prop. Releases 3,754.49$



CAF 13-64: April 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 3 of 4

Real & Personal Property

Refunds

Rogers, John C Real Prop. Billed in Error 2008 161.65$

Rogers, John C Real Prop. Billed in Error 2009 167.37$

Rogers, John C Real Prop. Billed in Error 2010 167.37$

Rogers, John C Real Prop. Billed in Error 2011 167.38$

Rogers, John C Real Prop. Billed in Error 2012 167.38$

Total R&P Prop. Refunds 831.15$

Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Refunds 4,585.64$

Registered Vehicle Releases

Allen, James Wesley Jr. Pro-Rate 2011 1.51$

Person, Torrey Terrence Pro-Rate 2011 3.47$

Wilson, Jacquetta Marie Pro-Rate 2011 11.85$

Belgrave,Gerard John Correct Value 2012 15.97$

Bryant, Al ice Faye Pro-Rate 2012 2.21$

Canfield, Joseph Robert Correct 2012 6.57$

Dickerson, Linwood Ray Pro-Rate 2012 5.79$

Dunston, Makecia Rachelle Pro-Rate 2012 1.89$

ETC of Henderson, Inc. Correct Value 2012 12.12$

Faulkner, Roy Hurst Pro-Rate 2012 0.15$

Fields, Beatrice Helen Pro-Rate 2012 24.46$

Green-Bello Carolyne Pro-Rate 2012 13.89$

Hanks, Sandra Nelson Pro-Rate 2012 27.65$

Henderson Family YWCA Charitable All O 2012 109.45$

James, Thomas Paul Correct Value 2012 6.14$

Kerr Area Transportation Auth Charitable All O 2012 390.25$

Lemay Tashon Nakia Pro-Rate 2012 7.15$

Marrow, Chiquita Marie Pro-Rate 2012 7.26$

Morgan, William Joshua Correct Value 2012 94.17$

Person, Torrey Terrence Pro-Rate 2012 18.02$

Pettaway, Bryan Oneal Military Non Resident 2012 144.78$

Soto, Irma Santiago Correct Situs 2012 30.83$

Teeter, Charles Lavette, Jr. Transfer Out 2012 108.32$

Tillman, Richard Gary Pro-Rate 2012 65.81$

Townes, Vernon Lee Transfer Out 2012 130.33$



CAF 13-64: April 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds: 10 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 4 of 4

Troutman, Wil liam Marlin Transfer Out 2012 72.54$

Vallejo, Joel Gerrado Pro-Rate 2012 6.55$

Vann, Michael Dale Correct Value 2012 115.53$

Variety Wholesale Inc. Pro-Rate 2012 161.14$

Walton, Charles Edward Correct Situs 2012 153.73$

Yarborough, Martin Antonio Pro-Rate 2012 2.55$

Total Releases 1,752.08$

Registered Vehicle

Refunds

Eaton, Jonah Marshall Pro-Rate 2012 9.13$

Hargrove, Darrica Jean Pro-Rate 2012 15.64$

Hargrove, John III Pro-Rate 2012 2.94$

Holt, Karen Edwards Pro-Rate 2012 1.40$

Jefferson, Tiffany Pro-Rate 2012 8.88$

M R Williams Pro-Rate 2012 66.50$

Neal, Demarcus Jerron Pro-Rate 2012 17.76$

Townes, Lawanda Renee Reg. Veh. Bil led In Error 2012 92.19$

Vallejo, Joel Gerrado Pro-Rate 2012 6.74$

Vick, Frederick Earl J. Pro-Rate 2012 3.64$

Wardrett, Brenda Faye Pro-Rate 2012 15.28$

West, Kristen Leigh Pro-Rate 2012 7.92$

Williams, Alfreda Pro-Rate 2012 11.56$

Total Reg Veh Refunds 259.58$

Total Reg Veh Releases

& Refunds 2,011.66$

Total All Releases & Refunds 6,597.30$

























































































































Last Updated: 6/7/2013 9:55 AM

Date Time Event Location

June 11
th

3:00 PM
Henderson Community

Appearance Commission
City Council Chambers

June 11th 6:00 PM
Budget Work Session # 7

If Needed
City Council Chambers

June 13
th

12:00 PM
Henderson-Vance Park &
Recreations Commission

Aycock Recreation Center

June 13th 6:00 PM
Budget Work Session #8

If Needed
City Council Chambers

June 17
th

6:00 PM
Budget Work Session #9

If Needed
City Council Chambers

June 18th 6:00 PM
Budget Work Session #10

If Needed
City Council Chambers

June 20
th

7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers

June 24th 6:00 PM
City Council Meeting

Work Session to Follow
City Council Chambers

July 1
st

3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers

July 1
st

6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers

July 2
nd

3:30 PM
Henderson Zoning Board of

Adjustment
City Council Chambers

July 4
th City Hall

Closed
HAPPY FOURTH OF JULY

CITY HALL CLOSED

July 8th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers

July 9
th

3:00 PM
Henderson Appearance

Committee
City Council Chambers

July 12th 12:00 PM
Henderson-Vance Park &
Recreations Commission

Aycock Recreation Center

July 18
th

7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers

July 22nd 6:00 PM
City Council Meeting

Work Session to Follow
City Council Chambers

July 26
th

10:00 AM
Henderson-Vance E911
Advisory Board Meeting

E911 Operations Center

Aug 5th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers

Aug 6
th

3:30 PM
Henderson Zoning Board of

Adjustment
City Council Chambers

Aug 8
th

12:00 PM
Henderson-Vance Park &
Recreations Commission

Aycock Recreation Center

Aug 12
th

12:00 PM KLRW Advisory Board Meeting City Hall Large Conference Room

Aug 12
th

6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers

Aug 13
th

3:00 PM
Henderson Community

Appearance Commission
City Council Chambers

Meetings and Events Calendar

Happy Fourth of July






















	Agenda.pdf
	Draft Minutes
	FY14 Budget Hearing
	Rezoning Brodie Road
	Rezoning Beckford Drive
	Amending Table of Permitted Uses
	Accepting the Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant 
	Tax Collection Policies
	 Disposition of Property at 701 East Avenue 
	Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project Funds
	Supporting EDC's recommendation to Triangle North Board
	BJA Grant Application
	Lifting Water Voluintary Water Conservation Measures 
	Tax Releases and Refunds
	Aycock Center.pdf
	Meetings and Event Calendar.pdf
	Fire Suppression & Rescue Activity

